
Agenda amended 11/14/2014 at 9:30 a.m. 

           
 
 

 
Notice is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the Nacogdoches City Council to be held November 18, 2014, 
beginning at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 202 E. Pilar Street, Nacogdoches, Texas, for the 
purpose of considering the following agenda items.  All agenda items are subject to action.   
 

PLEASE LIMIT PRESENTATIONS TO THREE MINUTES 
(UNLESS PRIOR APPROVAL IS OBTAINED) 

 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Invocation. 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS: 

 
4. Items to be removed from Consent Agenda. 
  
5. CONSENT AGENDA: Items included under the Consent Agenda require little or no deliberation by the 

Council.  Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the City Manager or his designee to proceed with 
conclusion of each in accordance with staff recommendations as reflected in the minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
A. Consider approval of minutes from regular session of November 4, 2014. (City Secretary) 

 
B. Consider authorization for tax resale for property described as Lot 4, Block 3 of the Re-Subdivision of the 
John G. Orton First Addition, Nacogdoches County, Texas located on Orton Street.  (City Secretary) 

 
C. Consider granting final acceptance of the streets, water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage facilities for 

Tower Village located near the intersection of Park Street and Tower Road.  (City Engineer) 
 

D. Consider approval of the Historic Restoration Grant budget for FY 2015.  (Community Services Director) 
 

E. Consider co-sponsorship of the Nine Flags Festival.  (Main Street Manager) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA: 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING:  Consider the request for a specific use permit to construct an accessory apartment in an 
R-1, Single Family Residential zoning district, for Lot 4, Bostwick Lane Subdivision, City Block 67, located at 324 
Burrows Street.  This request has been submitted by David Vineyard.  SUP2014-002.  (City Planner) 

 
7. Consider Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement (380 Agreement) between the City of 

Nacogdoches and HEB Grocery Company, LP (HEB).  (City Manager) 
 
8. Consider contract with GDVF for the transfer and recycling of mattresses received at the City landfill.  (Public 

Works Manager) 
 

9. Receive update on payday lending.  (City Attorney) 
 

10. Consider ratification of acceptance of Department of Homeland Security – Division of Emergency Management 
2014 SHSP-LETPA Grant in the amount of $169,970; and approve an Emergency Budget Amendment to 
incorporate funding into current budget.  (Police Chief/Grant Coordinator) 

 
11. Consider adoption of an ordinance regulating a no parking zone on Rusk Street from North Street to Pearl 

Street.  (City Planner) 



 Nacogdoches City Council 
Agenda Page 2 

November 18, 2014 
 
 

 

 
12. Consider adoption of an ordinance regulating a no parking zone near the intersection of Lady Jennifer and Post 

Oak Road.  (City Planner) 
 

13. Consider an ordinance updating the process for appointment of fire marshal.  (Fire Chief 
 

 
For the convenience of the audience, the Council may conduct Executive Session deliberation in the 
first floor conference room, Room 112, of City Hall.  Re-opening of the open session for action, if any, on 
Executive Session items will be in City Council Chambers.  Regular Session agenda items appropriate 
for Executive Session consideration may be moved into Executive Session for deliberation, but not 
action, upon proper announcement at the meeting by the presiding officer. 

 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 
A. Deliberation regarding Economic Development negotiations under Local Government Code Section 

551.087 as follows: 
 

1. Discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the City has received from a 
business projects that the City body seeks to have locate in the City of Nacogdoches and with which 
the City is conducting economic development negotiations; and 

 
2. Deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to business prospects described by Subdivision 1 

above. 
 

15. Open for action, if any, on Item 14-A-1. 
 

16. Open for action, if any, on Item 14-A-2. 
 

17. Adjourn. 

 
This agenda is posted as required under G. C. Section 551.041.  For more information or a copy of the Open Meetings Act, please contact the 
Attorney General of Texas at 1-800-252-8011; the City Secretary at 936/559-2504 or visit the City of Nacogdoches web site at 
www.ci.nacogdoches.tx.us. 
 
The Nacogdoches City Council Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.  Requests for 
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.  Please contact the City Secretary’s office at (936) 559-
2504 or FAX (936) 559-2912 for further information. 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I certify that the notice of meeting was posted in the directory outside of City Hall, 202 E. Pilar Street, Nacogdoches, Texas on Friday, 
November 14, 2014 at 5:00 p.m. 

______________________________ 
Lila Fuller, City Secretary 

 
I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was removed by me from the directory outside of 
City Hall on the _____day of November 2014. 
 
Name: ____________________________ Title: _______________________________ 

www.ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


 
 

 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.   5-A 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: CONSENT AGENDA:  Consider approval of minutes from regular meeting of 

November 4, 2014. 

 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 18, 2014 

 

 

CITY CONTACT: Lila Fuller, City Secretary - 559-2504 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Minutes 

 



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                      October 21, 2014 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

Minutes approved November 18, 2014 
 

MINUTES 
Regular Session 

Nacogdoches City Council 
October 21, 2014 – 5:30 p.m. 
City Council Room – City Hall 

202 E. Pilar Street 
 
 

 

 
Regular Session: 
 
Those Present: 
 
Mayor Roger Van Horn; Council members Shelley Brophy, Roy Boldon, Michael Keller 
and David Norton; City Manager Jim Jeffers, City Attorney Rob Atherton and City 
Secretary Lila Fuller. 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
Mayor Van Horn at 5:30 p.m.   A quorum was established.   
 
2.  Invocation. 
 
Mayor Van Horn gave the invocation. 
 
3.  PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS: 

 
Mayor Van Horn recognized Boy Scout Troop 161 from First United Methodist Church 
who led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4.   Items to be removed from Consent Agenda. 
 
None. 
  
5.  CONSENT AGENDA: Items included under the Consent Agenda require little or 

no deliberation by the Council.  Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes 
the City Manager or his designee to proceed with conclusion of each in 
accordance with staff recommendations as reflected in the minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
A. Consider approval of minutes from the regular session of October 21, 2014.  

 
Approved as presented. 
 

B. Receive quarterly Investment Report for quarter ended September 30, 2014. 
 

Approved as presented. 
 

C. Consider Resolution calling for the Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs to change the funding process for the HOME program. 
 
(Resolution No. 1164-11-14) 
 

Council member Norton moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  The 
motion was seconded by Council member Keller and unanimously passed. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
6.  Consider accepting land located at 400 N. Lanana Street from the 

Nacogdoches County Historical Foundation. 
 
Jessica Sowell, assistant historic sites manager, stated the property was recently 
purchased by the NCHF and they wished to donate it to the City for future use as a 
parking lot for Zion Hill Baptist Church.   
 

M
in

u
te

s 
u

n
o

ff
ic

ia
l 

u
n

ti
l 

ap
p

ro
v

ed
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

DRAFT 



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                      October 21, 2014 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

Minutes approved November 18, 2014 
 

Council member Norton moved to accept the donation of property located at 400 N. 
Lanana Street from the Nacogdoches County Historical Foundation as presented for 
future use as a parking lot for Zion Hill Baptist Church.  The motion was seconded by 
Council member Boldon and unanimously passed. 

 
7.  Consider approval for City staff to develop and negotiate an agreement with 

the Texas Department of Transportation to take over ownership and 
maintenance of Starr Avenue between North Street and University Drive. 

 
Steve Bartlett, city engineer, explained that staff was requesting direction on whether 
to move forward on a study to determine potential cost savings through ownership 
and maintenance of Starr Avenue.  He stated TxDOT was advancing plans to widen 
East Starr and the project would require the City to relocate all utilities within the 
section between North Street and Clark Boulevard at significant expense.  Accepting 
the street after improvements are complete would allow the City to leave most of the 
existing utilities in their current location and would greatly reduce the pending near-
term costs to the City.  However, the savings of the near-term would be eclipsed 
significantly by street maintenance costs. 
 
Bartlett stated if the Council wished to explore accepting maintenance, staff would 
research costs and details in greater depth and bring final recommendations back to 
the City Council for consideration within the next month. 
 
It was the consent of the City Council that staff is authorized to research costs and 
details in greater depth and bring final recommendations back to the City Council for 
the acquisition and maintenance of Starr Avenue between North Street and 
University Drive. 
  
8.  Consider abandonment of a 15” sanitary sewer line under the northern portion 

of Lots 10 and 11, Block 1, John G. Orton Heirs Partition located on University 
Drive. 

 
Rob Atherton, city attorney stated this unused and functionally abandoned portion of 
sewer line was under a portion of the property that would be developed into a future 
water park.  He stated the request was to officially abandon in place the sewer line lying 
under these lots. 
 
Council member Keller moved to approve the abandonment of a 15” sanitary sewer line 
under the northern portion of Lots 10 and 11, Block 1, John G. Orton Heirs Partition 
located on University Drive as presented.  The motion was seconded by Council 
member Boldon and unanimously passed. 
 
9.  Consider ordinance awarding bid for purchase of property by Kingdom 

Perspectives-Nacogdoches, Ltd and authorize Mayor to proceed with 
Economic Development Agreement to close sale of property to be developed 
as a water park on University Drive. 

 
Rob Atherton, city attorney explained the city council had selected the bid on September 
2, 2014 and began the 90-day period for the bidder to inspect the property and provide 
due diligence.  He stated the action needed was to award the bid to the only bidder, and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the economic development agreement to close the sale 
of property. 
 
Council member Norton asked if there were endangered species on the property. 
 
City Attorney Atherton stated he had not been made aware of any endangered species, 
but explained the property was being sold as is, and that issue would need to be 
addressed by the developer, and not the City. 
 
LaDonna Simpson, 817 Swift Street, appeared and voiced her concern that the property 
did have an endangered woodpecker habitat, as well as other wildlife habitats.  She 
referenced a City study done in 1997 stating this was a habitat for endangered species. 
 
There being no further discussion, Council member Keller moved to adopt an ordinance 
awarding the bid for the purchase of property by Kingdom Perspectives-Nacogdoches, 
Ltd and authorizing Mayor Van Horn to proceed with an economic development 
agreement to close the sale of property to be developed as a water park on University 



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                      October 21, 2014 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

Minutes approved November 18, 2014 
 

Drive.  The motion was seconded by Council member Brophy and passed by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:   Mayor Van Horn, Council members Brophy, Boldon and Keller 
NOES:  Council member Norton 
 
(Ordinance No.  1684-11-14) 
 
10. Consider approval for purchase of a Caterpillar Model 623K Scraper lease for 

the City Landfill. 
 
Cary Walker, public works manager, appeared requesting approval to lease a Caterpillar 
Model 623K scraper for use at the City’s landfill.  He stated the lease would include a 5-
year, 10,000 hour power rain and hydraulics warranty and would be purchased through 
HoltCat and Texas Buy Board contract #424-13.  He further stated the City would have 
the option to purchase the equipment at the end of the 5-year lease for $200,000.  He 
stated the lease contained a non-appropriations clause so the machine could be 
returned if not funded in future years.  Walker further stated the approval should be 
subject to completion of the legal review. 
 
Council member Brophy moved to approve the purchase of a Caterpillar Model 623K 
Scraper through 5-year lease with HoltCat in a lease amount of $10,183.15 per month, 
subject to completion of legal review.  The motion was seconded by Council member 
Boldon and unanimously passed. 
 
11. Consider designation of a City representative to the Nacogdoches County 

Industrial Foundation. 
 
Rob Atherton stated the city manager is the current representative of the Nacogdoches 
County Industrial Foundation, a non-profit corporation established in the 1950’s to 
promote commerce and industry in Nacogdoches.  He further explained that in the city 
manager’s absence, he recently attended a meeting and at that meeting he was elected 
as a director of the Foundation.  He stated it would be appropriate for the City Council to 
formally designate him as the City representative. 
 
Mayor Van Horn moved to designate City Attorney Atherton as the City of Nacogdoches’ 
representative to the Nacogdoches County Industrial Foundation as presented.  The 
motion was seconded by Council member Brophy and unanimously passed. 
 
12. Consider approving 2015 Routine Airport Maintenance Program (RAMP) Grant 

project proposal.  RAMP is a 50/50 match grant.  Proposed projects for FY 2015 
total $70,500. 

 
Mary Uresti, airport manager, appeared and reviewed the proposed projects as follows: 
 
 

1 
Maintain Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention 
Plan (SWPPP) 

(Mandatory) SWPPP maintenance.  $       6,500  

2 Herbicide/Pesticide 
(Mandatory) Bi-yearly application to airport 
grounds, which includes fence line. 

 $     13,000  

3 
Airport Light Repair and 
Maintenance 

(Mandatory) Runway, taxiway and ramp lighting 
repair and maintenance. 

 $       7,000  

4 Camera Replacement 
Update and replace outdated security camera 
system. 

 $     15,000  

5 Electricity to Barn 
Install electricity with lighting to tractor barn. 
Necessary for lineman to perform mower 
maintenance. 

 $       3,000  

6 Carpet Replacement 
Replace 10-year-old carpet, which is in poor 
condition, in Pilots Lounge. 

 $       4,000  



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                      October 21, 2014 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

Minutes approved November 18, 2014 
 

7 Airport Signage 

Repair existing signage. Add new signage at 
Hwy 7 W. The City has an opportunity to enter 
into an MOU with the ATO fraternity to put a sign 
on their property at Hwy 7 W. 

 $     20,000  

8 Light to Signage Provide lights to new signage at Hwy 7 W.  $       2,000  

        

  Total Project Cost:    $     70,500  

 
Ms. Uresti stated the City’s match would be $35,250 and was in the current budget.  She 
stated the projects would be completed by August 30, 2015. 
 
Mayor Van Horn stated he would like to see the airport users be engaged in partnering 
with the City for airport projects in the future. 
 
Council member Norton moved to approve the RAMP Grant project proposal for FY 
2015 as presented.  The motion was seconded by Council member Keller and 
unanimously passed. 
 
The City Council went into Executive Session at 6:11 p.m. 
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

 
A. Personnel – Consider City Attorney Annual Evaluation and Contract 

Extension as per G.C. Sec. 551.074. 
 

B. Deliberation regarding Economic Development negotiations under 
Local  Government Code Section 551.087 as follows: 

 
1. Discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information 

that the City has received from a business projects that the City 
body seeks to have locate in the City of Nacogdoches and with 
which the City is conducting economic development negotiations; 
and 

 
2. Deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to business 

prospects described by Subdivision 1 above. 
 
The City Council reconvened in open session at 6:35 p.m. 
 
14. Open for action, if any, on Item 13-A. 
 
Council member Brophy moved to extend the employment contract with City Attorney 
Rob Atherton for one additional year.  The motion was seconded by Council member 
Boldon and unanimously passed. 
 
15. Open for action, if any, on Item 13-B-1. 
 
No action was taken in open session. 
 
16. Open for action, if any, on Item 13-B-2. 
 
No action was taken in open session. 

 
17.  Adjourn. 
 
Mayor Van Horn adjourned meeting at 6:35 p.m. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Mayor Roger Van Horn 

ATTEST:     City Council 
City of Nacogdoches 

________________________________ 
Lila Fuller, City Secretary 



 
 

 
 

 

ITEM NO.  5-B 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: CONSENT AGENDA:  Consider authorization for tax resale for property described 

as Lot 4, Block 3 of the Re-Subdivision of the John G. Orton First Addition, 

Nacogdoches County, Texas located on Orton Street. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 
 

DESCRIPTION: The City of Nacogdoches, as a taxing entity, has been requested on behalf of 

Nacogdoches ISD to approve the sale of property described above. 
 
COST:   None 
 

SCHEDULE: Upon approval, a Tax Resale Deed will be executed by all taxing entities. 

  

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Approve sale of property as presented. 
 

CITY CONTACT: Jim Jeffers, City Manager – 559-2501 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Description of Property 

   Tax Resale Deed is available from the City Secretary 

 



2

1

60

3
2

2

7
2

1

1

555555

6
6

5
45

8

3

7

5

4

5

6

3

7
4

3

6

7

61

1

4

2
3

6

4

5

5

7
3

8
2

11

7

6

7

4

4

6

5

6

423

5

4

9

2

6

7

7 8

5

4

7

4

8

8

3

5

5

1

2

4

9

1

3

1

7

1

6
4

56 7

9

52

9

2

7

4

2
2

1

7

2

888

1

4

1

12

1-A

5

1

8

1

8
6

2

8
9

8

54

8

3

1

2

9

9

5

2

2

3

7 2

4

2

8

8

3

9

9

6

1

3

3

12

1

8

1

6

2

3
9

5
1

6

2

5

5

13

1

93

5

6

10

3

7

4

10

4

6

6A

7

5

66

11

1

11

13 14

4

1

8-B

2

7

15

4-C

6

13-B

6

14

42-A

11

54-A

11

5

15

16

13-A

11

10

6

11

14

10

17

13

11

12

10

2A

14

12

15

2B

13

5

10 3

13

9

3

12

2A

10
12

10

10

2

6-A

1

3B

11

7-A

11

8

2B

16

13-C

7

4

6

3A

9-A

18

8-A

8-A

8-A

3-A

2C

1-A

1-A

3-A

9-A

2-A

1-A

57-A

6-A

2-A

53-D

2

2-A

2-B

1

7-A

3-A

4

2-A

15

5-A

7

8-A

3-A

6

53-C

9-A

53-B

9

3-A

11A

3

12

1-A

10-A

PT 3

53-A

1-A
12-C

58 NORTH

152

1-B

8-B

9-A

2-A

8-A

58 SOUTH

27

10

13

15-A

13-B-1

2-D 3-A

4162

1-C

14

62-A

5-A
2-A

62-B

4-A

2-B

1-A

26

7-A

1-C
1-B

1-A

19-A

4-A

7-A

4-A

6-A

5-A

10-A

12-B

EASEMENT
9-B

EASEMENT

6-A

4

3 W 1/2

EASEMENT

5 E 1/2

13-C

10-A

3 E 1/2

9
PT 3

4 W 1/2

9

5 W 1/2

11-A

3-C

4 E 1/2

7-A

10-B

10 W 1/2
2 W 1/2

6

10 E 1/2 2 E 1/2

14-A

1

13-B

2-C

3

11-A

3-B
1

51

19

4-B

9-A

EASEMENT

8-A5

65-A NORTH
13-A

42

120

26-A

GREER ST

ELIZ
A ST

E MAIN ST

LE
LIA

 ST

CARIKER ST

ORTON ST

TIMBERLAKE ST

MOORE ST

ARTHUR WEAVER ST

ZU
LA

 ST

OR
TO

N 
ST

TIMBERLAKE ST

601

140
0

709

809

822803

816

218

1716

903

1516 1701
1506

1421

600

1612

1526

720

710

1523

809
730

825

729

923

813

1522

1530

1305

613

1509

821

1618

812

927

809

1524

622

125

720

817

732

110

908

115

905

1612

707

909

1702

618 724

612

125

615

1400

616

809

1410

117

823

901

1405

710

1323

1818

826

1716

915

121

116

1623

819 909

723

701

812

1505

718

808

611

814

627

1703

700

1524

721

818

1716

914

725

920
1001

1622

1601

817

902

204

825

211

803

713

712

1316

603

908

1619

614

1310

708

120

1906

714

1510

716

1503

717

1520

1414

701623

1819

905

1609

114

1601

621

1811

1005

1609

717

214

1317

109

701

1512

1529

1511

1000

1525

721

726

114

1815

608

1523

824

717

1527

135

1715

905

814

634

804

1509

1901

1518 608

806

1527
1527

810

1522

1708

816

917

804

604

910
1519

913

708

1513

820

817

908

1514

1817
1821

816

620

600

1721
1719 1723

1807

901

1700

1517

812

621

114

806

1615

1717

1515

1823

817

1600

1805

902

1522

1512

1216

1311

1 inch = 200 feet



 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.  5-C 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: CONSENT AGENDA: Consider granting final acceptance of the streets, water, 

sanitary sewer, and storm drainage facilities for Tower Village. 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 18, 2014 

 

DESCRIPTION: This project included the addition of a new public street with water lines, and 

storm drainage facilities in the Tower Village Subdivision located near the 

intersection of Park Street and Tower Road. All work has been completed by the 

developer to the satisfaction of their consulting engineer and City staff. 

 

 Formal acceptance by City Council will begin a 12 month warranty period for all 

improvements by the developer. 

 

COST:  $0 

   

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No  

 

 

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Staff recommends acceptance of project. 

 

CITY CONTACT: Steve Bartlett, P.E., City Engineer  

 
 



‘  

 

ITEM NO.  5-D 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: CONSENT AGENDA:  Consider approval of the Historic Restoration Grant budget 

for FY 2015 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 
 

DESCRIPTION: The Historic Restoration Grant fund is used to aid in the preservation of historic 

structures located within the Historic Overlay.  Since the program began in 1989 the 

city has awarded approximately $750,000 in grant funds used to complete approximately 

$3,200,000 worth of exterior restoration projects. For this grant cycle $43,556.00 in 

grants funds will help complete approximately $87,000 in exterior renovations. The 

Historic Landmark Preservation Committee met on November 3, 2014 and recommended 

a budget that will match 50% of each project. Each application was scored based on 

criteria such as National Historic Register Status, the structure’s availability to the 

public, the age of the structure, and the current condition of the structure. 

 
COST:   $43,556.00   

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.   Requested 

      N/A 

 

FUNDING FROM CURRENT BUDGET 

 

FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Balance  Requested 

 Hotel Motel Tax          $51,681.90 $43,556.00 
      

SCHEDULE: The grant funds will be disbursed upon completion of each project.  Each of the 

approved applicants will have one year to complete their project.   

   

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   The Historic Landmark Preservation Committee recommends approval of the 

attached budget for the FY 2015 Historic Restoration Grant funding. 
 

CITY CONTACT: Brian W. Bray, Director of Community Services, 936-559-2935, 

brayb@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us  

 

ATTACHMENTS: Historic Restoration Grants FY 2015 project list and budget. 

mailto:brayb@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


Case  Use Project Address Applicant Project Estimate % Awarded Amount Granted
% of Total 

Funds
Project Description

2015-001

2015-002 Res 222 N. Mound Milton Pitts $25,000.00 50.00%  $          12,500.00 28.70% Reroof, Porch Handrails 

2015-003 Comm 203 E. Main Bo Miller $24,312.00 50.00%  $          12,156.00 27.91%
Paint windows, replace canopy, repoint brick, 

replace light fixtures

2015-004

2015-005 Res 512 N. Lanana Clarence McMichael, Sr $15,500.00 50.00%  $            7,750.00 17.79% Replace rotten wood and paint house

2015-006 Res 519 E. Hospital John & Andrea Frederick $19,150.00 50.00%  $            9,575.00 21.98%
Painting, rebuild and replace all screens, 

repair and replace porch deck

2015-007 Comm 316 N. Church Michael Dean $3,150.00 50.00%  $            1,575.00 3.62% Repair porch, repair back deck and paint

$87,112 43,556.00$          100%

8,711.20$            

Total available funds 51,681.90$          

Total unallocated funds 8,125.90$            

2015 HRG Proposed Budget

Pulled Application

Pulled Application



 
 

 

ITEM NO.  5-E 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: CONSENT AGENDA:  Consider co-sponsorship of the Nine Flags Festival 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18th, 2014 

 

DESCRIPTION:  The Nine Flags Festival in Nacogdoches is a celebration of Texas history and 

culture. Known as the birthplace of Texas history, Nacogdoches comes alive during 

the holidays with five weekends of activities to put everyone in the Christmas spirit.  

The Nine Flags Festival is requesting that the City continue to co-sponsor this 

festival. Through co-sponsorship the City agrees to the following: (1) Permission to 

attach the lighted garland decorations to the antique lamp posts in the downtown 

district. (2) On-site support from City Electricians (3) authorization for an outdoor 

fireworks display in the city limits in accordance with City policy. 4) Assistance from 

NPD and NFD with crowd control and traffic during the lighted Christmas Parade.  

 

COST:   N/A 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?:  No  

 

FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Original Budget  Requested 

     

SCHEDULE:  November 15 - December 13, 2014 

  

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION:   Approve Co-sponsorship of the Nine Flags Festival 

 

CITY CONTACT: Sarah O’Brien, Main Street Manager, 559-2573 

Melissa Sanford (CVB), 564-7351 

 

ATTACHMENTS:       None.  



 
 

 

ITEM NO.  6 
 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Public Hearing: Consider the request for specific use permit to construct 

an accessory apartment in an R-1, Single Family Residential zoning 

district, for Lot 4, Bostwick Lane Subdivision, City Block 67, located at 

324 Burrows Street.  This request has been submitted by David 

Vineyard.  SUP2014-002. 
 

MEETING DATE: November 10, 2014 
 

DESCRIPTION: The applicant has requested a specific use permit to construct an accessory 

apartment to the rear of 324 Burrows Street.  The zoning ordinance defines as 

accessory apartment as an “accessory dwelling for the use and occupancy by any 

person employed on the premises on a full-time basis for domestic or medical help or 

family members to the second degree of consanguinity and affinity. Such dwelling 

shall not have separate utility services or meters.”  The property owners plan to 

utilize the structure as a pool house and a guest house for family members.   

 A specific use permit is required in this circumstance, because the property owners 

wish to include a kitchen in the accessory structure.  The zoning ordinance uses the 

inclusion of a kitchen in a structure to differentiate between a structure’s status as 

a dwelling unit (an accessory apartment is a type of dwelling unit) or a pool house or 

simple storage building.  The rationale behind this is that having a kitchen defines a 

separate living space.  If no kitchen were included in the structure, it would be 

considered a simple pool house.  The specific use permit process allows this 

structure to be constructed as a secondary dwelling unit (accessory apartment) on 

the lot, and family members to reside in the structure.  Without the specific use 

permit process, only one single family home may exist on the property. 

 

COST: N/A 
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No 

 

FUNDING FROM CURRENT BUDGET 

 

FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Adopted Budget Balance  Requested 
   N/A 
 
 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE: This request is tentatively scheduled for the November 18th City Council 

agenda.  If the request is approved by the City Council, the applicant may 

immediately apply for building permits. 

 

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Conditions for approval to be considered (staff comments are underlined): 

(1) The specific use will be compatible with and not injurious to the use and 

enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity, nor significantly diminish 

or impair property values within the immediate vicinity; 

The proposed accessory apartment is to be located on a 1.4 acre lot.  The zoning 

ordinance requires at least 0.19 acres for each dwelling unit in this zoning 

district.  The addition of a secondary accessory apartment to this large 

property will not significantly affect the density of the neighborhood, and thus 

is compatible with the surrounding properties. 

(2) The establishment of the specific use will not impede the normal and orderly 

development and improvement of surrounding vacant property. 

There is no surrounding vacant property. 

(3) Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary supporting 

facilities have been or will be provided; 

Utilities and roads already exist.  Adequate drainage is addressed by the City’s 

drainage standards. 

(4) The design, location and arrangement of all driveways and parking spaces 

provides for the safe and convenient movement of vehicular and pedestrian 

traffic without adversely affecting the general public or adjacent developments; 

Any new driveways and parking spaces will have to meet the requirements of the 

zoning ordinance and driveway guidelines.  No new parking or driveways are 

expected. 

(5) Any lighting to be provided will be directional so as not to disturb or adversely 

affect neighboring properties; 

Outdoor lighting must meet the City’s lighting ordinance restrictions, i.e. only 

downlighting, no spillover lighting onto neighboring properties. 

(6) Sufficient landscaping and screening to ensure harmony and compatibility with 

adjacent property exists or will be provided; and 

The property is currently landscaped.  Properties in residential zoning districts 

are not required to provide any landscaping improvements. 

(7) The proposed use is in accordance with the comprehensive plan. 

The comprehensive plan recommends single family use for this property. 

 
CITY CONTACT: Larissa Philpot, City Planner; 559-2572, philpotl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us  

 

ATTACHMENTS: Zoning map 

 Aerial photo 
 

mailto:philpotl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


28
1

1

5 4

8

15

3

542
7

3
6

1

26-H

11-I

13121110
14

26-A

11-B

11-D

11-R

9

2

11-L3

11-H

27-A-127-A-2

11-D-1

11-B-1 11-B-2

11-D-1 11-D-2

1-B

BURROWS ST

BOSTWICK ST

RAGUET ST

TARA LN

314

317

3913

407

324312

390
1

402
406

408

415

414 412

3805

3815

3821

4016

4001

4005

232

3731

4024

1 inch = 100 feet

2014-002
A
B-1
B-2
B-3
I-1
I-2
M
PD
R-1
R-2
R-3
R-4



BURROWS ST

BOSTWICK ST

TARA LN
324

402

312

414

407

40
8

317

1 inch = 50 feet

2014-002



 
 

ITEM NO.  7 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Consider Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement (380 

Agreement) between the City of Nacogdoches and HEB Grocery Company, LP 

(HEB). 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 

 

DESCRIPTION:  HEB requested a Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 

with the City of Nacogdoches for construction of a grocery store at University 

Drive and Loop 224 anticipated to open in 2018.  In order for HEB to receive 

an investment from the City of Nacogdoches the following must be satisfied: 

 HEB will invest no less than $15,000,000 

 HEB will employ and maintain a minimum of 75 full time positions on or 

before December 31, 2018 

 

Refund of property tax payments are as follows: 

 

Tax Year Program Grant Payment 

1 100% of Increased Taxes Paid 

2 100% of Increased Taxes Paid 

3 100% of Increased Taxes Paid 

4 95% of Increased Taxes Paid 

5 85% of Increased Taxes Paid 

 

 The proposed construction site has extraordinary development costs due to the 

presence of wetlands.  The 380 Agreement calls for an additional City 

investment of $222,745.  The mitigation pipeline total anticipated cost 

$360,975. 

 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION:   Approve Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement with HEB 

Grocery Company, LP for construction of grocery store. 

 

CONTACT:  Jim Jeffers, City Manager 

936-559-2501  

jeffers@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Chapter 380 Development Program and Agreement 

   Economic Impact Analysis 

mailto:jeffers@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


CITY OF NACOGDOCHES TEXAS
AND

HEB GROCERY COMPANY LP

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

PROGRAM AND AGREEMENT

This CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM AND

AGREEMENT hereinafter referred to as the Agreement is made and entered into by and
between the CITY OF NACOGDOCHES TEXAS a Texas homerule municipality the
City and HEB GROCERY COMPANY LP a Texas limited partnership its successors and
assigns Developer

RECITALS

WHEREAS Developer is contemplating development of the Project as more
particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein

WHEREAS the City is authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code
to make loans and grants of public funds for the purposes of promoting local economic
development and stimulating and enhancing business and commercial activity within the City

WHEREAS the City has established an economic development program which
authorizes the City to make such economic development loans and grants

WHEREAS the City has determined that a grant of funds to Developer for the Project
will serve the public purposes of promoting local economic development helping eliminate
unemployment and underemployment in the City and stimulating and enhancing business and
commercial activity within the City

WHEREAS the City has concluded and hereby finds that this Agreement clearly
promotes economic development in the City and as such meets the requisites under Chapter
380 of the Texas Local Government Code and further is in the best interests of the City and
Developer

WHEREAS the City has concluded and hereby finds that this Agreement clearly
promotes economic development in the City and as such meets the requirements of Article III
Section 52a of the Texas Constitution by assisting in the development and diversification of the
economy of the State by helping to eliminate unemployment or underemployment in the State
and by the development or expansion of commerce within the State

WHEREAS the City desires and agrees to enter into this Agreement with Developer in
order to implement the economic development program described herein and shall follow all
applicable rules and procedures prescribed by the Citys Charter and the laws of the State in
providing Developer the economic development incentives described herein



WHEREAS development of the Property will require the Developer to incur
extraordinary site development expenses that must be offset to allow development of the Project

and

WHEREAS the Developer desires and agrees to enter into this Agreement with City in
order to construct and operate the Project described herein and to create and retain jobs

NOW THEREFORE for and in consideration of the agreements contained herein and
other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged the City and Developer agree as follows

SECTION 1 RECITALS INCORPORATED

The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this Agreement and shall
be considered part of the mutual covenants and consideration that bind the parties

SECTION 2 TERM

This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall continue until the
earlier of a sixth anniversary of the January l that follows the issuance of a Certificate of
Occupancy for the Project b the date upon which any Program Grant Payments due to
Developer have been paid in full or c the date terminated sooner under the provisions hereof
The Effective Date shall be the date that both parties have executed the Agreement

SECTION 3 DEFINITIONS

The following words shall have the following meanings when used in this Agreement

a Certificate of Occupancy The words Certificate of Occupancy mean
the certificate of occupancy issued by the City for the Project which certificate the City shall not
unreasonably withhold condition or delay

b FullTime Equivalent Employment Positions The words FullTime

Equivalent Employment Position or FullTime Equivalent Employment Positions mean the
number of employment positions that is obtained by dividing i the total number of paid hours
of work both fulltime and parttime at the Project including hours paid to employees for
vacation sick leave holidays or other paid nonwork days by ii Two Thousand Eighty2080
hours

c Personalty The word Personalty means the taxable tangible personal
property including inventory and supplies other than tangible personal property that was
appraised on the property tax rolls of the Nacogdoches County Appraisal District prior to the
period covered by this Agreement

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 2

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4v4



d Program Grant or Program Grant Payment The words Pro
Grant or Program Grant Payment mean the economic development grants paid by the City to
Developer in accordance with this Agreement including a the Site Development Grant
pursuant to Section 5c of this Agreement and b annual payments computed with reference to
ad valorem taxes generated by the Retail Development Sites improvements thereto and
Personalty unless modified pursuant to Section 5b of this Agreement The Program Grant
Payment shall be based upon property taxes paid on the Retail Development Sites by Developer
andor third parties

e Property The word Property means the approximately 117648 acres of
land situated at the southeast corner of the intersection of University Drive FM 1275 and
Stallings Drive State Highway Loop 224 in the City of Nacogdoches Nacogdoches County
and as more particularly described andor depicted in Exhibit B of this Agreement which exhibit is
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes

f Qualified Expenditures The words Qualified Expenditures mean all
hard and soft costs associated with the development and construction of the infrastructure and
improvements for the Project as such expenditures are described in Exhibit C of this Agreement
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes

g Related Documents The words Related Documents mean and include

without limitation any and all promissory notes loan agreements grant agreements performance
agreements tax abatement agreements andor developer participation agreement whether now
or hereafter existing entered by and between the City and Developer in connection with this
Agreement

h Retail Development Sites The phrase Retail Development Sites shall
mean collectively the Property and the West Retail Site

i Sales and Use Tax The words Sales and Use Tax or Sales and Use

Taxes mean the Citys municipal sales and use tax pursuant to section 321103aof the Texas
Tax Code as amended The current Sales and Use Tax rate is one percent 1

0 State The word State means the State of Texas

k State Comptroller The words State Comptroller mean the Office of the
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts or any successor agency

1 Term The word Term means the duration of this Agreement as
specified in Section 2 of this Agreement

m West Retail Site The phrase West Retail Site shall mean the
approximately 83109acre parcel situated at the southwest corner of the intersection of
University Drive FM 1275 and Stallings Drive State Highway Loop 224 in the City of

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 3

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4v4



Nacogdoches Nacogdoches County as more particularly described andor depicted in Exhibit B1
of this Agreement which exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes

SECTION 4 INCENTIVE CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPER

Developer has no obligation to construct the Project or develop the West Retail Site
However in order for Developer to receive the Program Grant payments pursuant to Section 5
of this Agreement the following are conditions that must be satisfied by Developer

a Construction of Qualified Expenditures Developer shall have

developed or caused to be developed the Project for an amount no less than Fifteen Million
Dollars 15000000 and shall submit to the City invoices receipts or other similar
documentation for the Qualified Expenditures in an amount of no less than Fifteen Million
Dollars15000000 and in a form reasonably acceptable to the City by December 31 2018

b Certificate of Occupancy Developer shall have obtained or caused to be
obtained from the City a Certificate of Occupancy for the Project by October 31 2018 subject to
Force Majeure

c Job Creation and Retention On or before December 31 2018 and
thereafter during the Term of this Agreement Developer shall employ and maintain a minimum
of seventyfive 75 FullTime Equivalent Employment Positions working at the Project the
Employment Commitment It is understood and agreed that Developer may satisfy the
Employment Commitment by an aggregation of all hours worked at all employment positions at
the Project both full time and part time over the subject twelve month period The Employment
Commitment shall be maintained thereafter during the Term of this Agreement subject to Force
Maj eure

d City Sales Tax Matters As a portion of the consideration for this
Agreement and to the maximum extent permitted under applicable law Developer covenants
and agrees to structure all contracts relating to the construction of the improvements and
facilities on the Property to which Developer or a related entity is a party in a manner that
requires City sales and use taxes to be collected and remitted with respect to the purchase of all
construction materials and other taxable items for such improvements and facilities other than
those purchased for resale Without limiting the generality of the immediately preceding
sentence Developer shall cause each contract with a contractor to

i be structured as a separated contract as such term is defined in
34 Texas Administrative Code3291a13with the result that

a the agreed contract price under the contract is divided into A
a separately stated agreed contract price for incorporated
materials and B a separately stated amount for all skill and
labor that includes fabrication installation and other labor that
is performed by the contractor and

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 4

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4v4



b the contractor is required under 34 Texas Administrative Code
3291a13to collect City sales and use taxes on the charge to
Developer for construction materials and other taxable items
based on the location of the improvements and facilities to be
constructed in the City and

ii contain provisions requiring such contractor to issue and to cause
each subcontractor and each sub subcontractor to issue properly
completed Texas Sales and Use Tax Resale Certificates andor
other certifications or documentation as appropriate to all
subcontractors and sub subcontractors and to take such other
actions as are necessary or advisable in order to claim obtain
andor evidence that the materials and other taxable items for the

improvements and facilities to be constructed in the City pursuant
hereto are subject to City sales taxes based on the location of the
improvements and facilities to be constructed on the Property

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof the sole remedy of
the City with regard to any failure of the Developer to comply
with this Section 4d shall be to require the Developer to pay to
the City the sales and use tax revenue lost by the City as a result
of the Developersfailure to comply with this Section Developer
shall not be liable for sales and use tax revenue lost by any taxing
authority other than the City for failure to comply with this
Section 4d

e Annual Compliance Verification Beginning on the January 1 that follows the
issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy and annually thereafter during the Term
of this Agreement Developer shall deliver to City an Annual Compliance
Verification signed by a duly authorized representative of Developer that shall
certify the following

i the taxable appraised value of the Property and Personalty located on
the Property for the applicable prior tax year as determined by the
Nacogdoches County Appraisal District

ii the ad valorem taxes paid to the City for the Property and Personalty
located on the Property for the applicable prior tax year and

iii the number of FullTime Equivalent Employment Positions and the
average wage paid by Developer for FullTime Equivalent
Employment Positions employed at the Property as required by this
Agreement as of the reporting date

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 5

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4v4



f Payment of Ad Valorem Taxes Developer covenants and agrees to pay by January 31
of each year all of the real and business personal ad valorem taxes due for the previous
tax year on the Property unless Developer is protesting said taxes in accordance with
applicable law

g Performance Developer agrees to perform and comply with all applicable terms
conditions and provisions set forth in this Agreement and in all other instruments and
agreements by and between Developer and the City

SECTION 5 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF CITY

City covenants that while this Agreement is in effect City shall comply with the
following terms and conditions

a Rebate of Increased Property Taxes

The City shall annually make a Program Grant Payment to Developer from the increased
ad valorem taxes both real property and Personalty due from the Retail Development Sites and
paid to the City by the Developer or third parties to the extent that such taxes exceed the amount
of Citys ad valorem taxes both real property and Personalty collected from the Retail
Development Sites for tax year 2017 the Increased Taxes Paid Program Grant Payments
will occur for five 5 tax years The first year of the Program Grant Payment pursuant to this
Section 5 of this Agreement shall be the first tax year that begins after the City issues a
Certificate of Occupancy for the Project and the Project is fully assessed by the taxing
authorities The respective Program Grant Payments shall be based upon the following
percentages

Tax Year

1

Pr
100 of Increased Taxes Paid

2 100 of Increased Taxes Paid

3 100 of Increased Taxes Paid

4 95 of Increased Taxes Paid

5 85 of Increased Taxes Paid

The City covenants and agrees to pay the Program Grant Payment to Developer within
thirty 30 days following receipt of the latter o 1 a tax certificate verifying ad valorem taxes
both real property and Personalty paid to the City for the Retail Development Sites and 2 the
Annual Compliance Verification

b Reduction in Program Grant Payments

Should Developer elect in its sole discretion to not acquire the West Retail Site prior to
the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the Project then the West Retail Site shall not be
included in the calculation of Program Grant Payments due to Developer under this Agreement

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 6

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4v4



c Site Development Grant

Within thirty 30 days following the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the
Project and in addition to other payments made under this Agreement the City shall pay
Developer a onetime Program Grant of Two Hundred TwentyTwo Thousand Seven Hundred
FortyFive Dollars and no cents 22274500 the Site Development Grant to offset

extraordinary site development costs incurred by HEB for the Project

SECTION 6 CESSATION OF DISBURSEMENTS AND SITE DEVELOPMENT

GRANT RECAPTURE

61 The City shall have no obligation to advance or disburse funds hereunder if i
Developer becomes insolvent files a petition in bankruptcy or similar proceedings or is
adjudged bankrupt or ii an Event of Default by Developer occurs and remains uncured beyond
all applicable grace andor notice and cure periods

62 The Developer shall be obligated to reimburse the City for all or a portion of the
Site Development Grant pursuant to the table set forth below if either of the following occurs
after the payment of the Site Development Grant to Developer any such event a Recapture
Event i the Developer fails to open a grocery store at the Project within 120 days following
receipt of the Site Development Grant subject to cure periods and Force Majeure or ii after
opening the grocery store the Developer ceases to operate said grocery store for more than 30
days during the remainder of the Term of this Agreement for any reason other than a casualty In
the event of a Recapture Event the Developer shall reimburse the City as follows with respect
to the Site Development Grant within thirty 30 days following receipt of written demand from
the City

Timing of Recapture Event Following
Certificate of Occupancy of Grocery Store

Zero up to 12 months

Percent of Site Development Grant Subject
to Reimbursement to City

100 Reimbursement

12 months up to 24 months 80 Reimbursement

24 months up to 36 months 60 Reimbursement

36 months up to 48 months 40 Reimbursement

48 months up to 60 months 20 Reimbursement

After 60 months No Reimbursement

SECTION 7 EVENTS OF DEFAULT An Event of Default shall exist under

this Agreement because of the Failure by either party hereto to comply with or to perform any
term obligation covenant or condition contained in this Agreement

SECTION 8 EFFECT OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 7

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4v4



If an Event of Default occurs the non defaulting party shall give written notice to the
other party of the specific Event of Default and the defaulting party shall have thirty 30 days to
cure said default as to defaults reasonably curable within such period or commences to cure
alleged default within said thirty 30 days and diligently pursues the cure to its conclusion as to
defaults not reasonably curable within thirty 30 days Should said default remain uncured as of
the last day of the applicable cure period and the non defaulting party is not otherwise in default
the non defaulting party shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement In the
event Developer defaults and is unable or unwilling to cure said default within the prescribed
time period the sole remedy of the City shall be to terminate the Agreement and cease making
payments to Developer described in Section 5 of this Agreement Developer specifically agrees
that City shall only be liable to Developer for the Program Grant Payments and other amounts
provided herein and shall not be liable for any alleged consequential damages The City
acknowledges that Developer is acting in reliance upon the Citys performance of their
respective obligations under this Agreement in making its decision to commit substantial
resources and money to develop the Project Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
the City and Developer hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is subject to the
provisions of Subchapter I of Chapter 271 Texas Local Government Code as amended The
City agrees that its immunity from suit is waived for the purpose of adjudicating a claim for
breach of this Agreement which is subject to the terms and conditions of Subchapter I of
Chapter 271 Texas Local Government Code as amended

SECTION 9 CHANGES IN LAWS

If any state or federal statute regulation or other law hereafter enacted renders this
Agreement void or illegal including case law established after the date hereof holding that a
Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement rebating ad valorem taxes such as this
Agreement is an unconstitutional debt or the federal government implements the Streamlined
Sales and Use Tax or similar legislation in such a manner as to change the consummation of a
sales and use tax event to a tax situs outside of the City thereby eliminating the Citys rights in
the sales tax proceeds paid by Developer for taxable sales located on the Property the City may
elect to provide to Developer such other economic incentives payments fee waivers andor
other valuable consideration so as to preserve as nearly as possible the intent of the parties and in
any event to preserve to Developer all of the economic benefits which would have otherwise
accrued to and been afforded Developer under this Agreement Such other consideration may
include without limitation the creation of an interest and sinking fund for Developersbenefit
The documentation of this other consideration shall be subject to Developers review and
approval such approval not to be unreasonably withheld

SECTION 10 INDEMNIFICATION

Developer shall indemnify save and hold harmless the City its council members
officers agents and employees collectively the Indemnitees from and against i any
and all claims demands actions or causes of action that are asserted against any
Indemnitee if the claim demand action or cause of action is a result of Developerstortious
interference with contract or business interference or Developerswrongful or negligent

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 8

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4w



use of the Citys financial assistance by Developer or its agents and employees ii any
claim demand action or cause of action which contests or challenges the legal authority of
Developer to enter into this Agreement and iii any and all liabilities losses costs or
expenses including reasonable attorneys fees and disbursements that any Indemnitee
suffers or incurs as a result of any of the foregoing provided however that Developer
shall have no obligation under this Section to the City with respect to any of the foregoing
arising out of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any Indemnitee or the breach by
the City of this Agreement If any claim demand action or cause of action is asserted
against any Indemnitee such Indemnitee shall promptly notify Developer and failure to so
promptly notify Developer shall release Developersobligations under this Section if such
failure prejudices Developers right to participate in the contest of such claim demand
action or cause of action as hereinafter provided If requested by Developer in writing as
so long as no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing such
Indemnitee shall in good faith contest the validity applicability and amount of such claim
demand action or cause of action and shall permit Developer to participate in such contest
Any Indemnitee that proposes to settle or compromise any claim demand action cause of
action or proceeding for which Developer may be liable for payment of indemnity
hereunder shall give Developer written notice of the terms of such proposed settlement or
compromise reasonably in advance of settling or compromising such claim or proceeding
and shall obtain Developersconcurrence thereto

SECTION 11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Agreement

a Amendments This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and
agreement of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement No alteration of or

amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed by the party
or parties sought to be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment

b Applicable Law and Venue This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and all obligations of the parties
created hereunder are performable in Nacogdoches County Texas Venue for any action arising
under this Agreement shall lie in the state district courts ofNacogdoches County Texas

c Assignment Without prior notice or consent of City Developer may assign this
Agreement to any limited partnership limited liability company or corporation owned or
controlled by Developer or under common ownership or control with Developer an Affiliate
With the consent of City Developer may assign this agreement as collateral to any lender
advancing funds for the construction of the Project or any refinance thereof and assign this
Agreement in whole or in part as applicable to any person or entity purchasing all or part of the
Project andor the Property who has financial strength and experience in the successful operation
of business substantially similar to the Project with such consent not to be unreasonably
withheld or delayed

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 9

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4w



d Binding Obligation This Agreement shall become a binding obligation on the
parties hereto upon execution by all signatories hereto The City warrants and represents as
follows that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has full authority to
execute this Agreement and bind the City to the same and the Agreement is authorized by State
law including but not limited to Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Governmental Code is within
the authority of the City and constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the City Developer
warrants and represents that the individual executing this Agreement on Developersbehalf has
full authority to execute this Agreement and bind Developer to the same

e Caption Headings Caption headings in this Agreement are for convenience
purposes only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions of the Agreement

f Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same
document

g Force Majeure It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties to this
Agreement that if the performance of any obligations hereunder is delayed by reason of war
civil commotion acts of God inclement weather fire or other casualty court injunction or other
cause outside the control of the party who is to perform Force Majeure the party so obligated
or permitted shall be excused from doing or performing the same during such period of delay so
that the time period applicable to such obligation or requirement shall be extended for a period of
time equal to the period such party was delayed

h Notice Any notice or other communication Notice given under this
Agreement must be in writing and may be given i by depositing the Notice in the United
States Mail postage paid certified and addressed to the Party to be notified with return receipt
requested ii by personal delivery of the Notice to the Party or an agent of the Party or iii by
confirmed facsimile provided that a copy of the Notice is also given in one of the manners
specified in i or ii Notice deposited in the mail in the manner specified will be effective two
2 business days after deposit Notice given in any other manner will be effective only if and
when received by the Party to be notified For the purposes of Notice the addresses of the
Parties will until changed as provided below be as follows

if to Developer HEB Grocery Company LP
646 South Main Avenue

San Antonio Texas 78204
Attn Executive Vice President

Telephone 210 938 8207

with a copy to Golden Steves Cohen Gordon LLP
300 Convent Street Suite 2600
San Antonio Texas 78205
Attn Stephen L Golden
Telephone 210 7453700

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 10

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4w



if to the City City ofNacogdoches
Attn James P Jeffers City Manager
202 E Pilar

Nacogdoches Texas 75961

with a copy to Robert Atherton

City Attorney
202 E Pilar

Nacogdoches Texas 75961
Telephone 936 5592503

i Severability The provisions of this Agreement are severable If any paragraph
section subdivision sentence clause or phrase of this Agreement is for any reason held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law or contrary to any rule or regulation having
the force and effect of law the remaining portions of the Agreement shall be enforced as if the
invalid provision had never been included

0 Undocumented Workers Developer certifies that Developer does not and will
not knowingly employ an undocumented worker in accordance with Chapter 2264 of the Texas
Government Code as amended If during the Term of this Agreement Developer is convicted of
a violation under 8 USC 1324af Developer shall repay the amount of any public subsidy
provided under this Agreement plus interest at the rate of two and onehalf percent 25 not

later than the 120 day after the date the City notifies Developer of the violation

k Mutual Assistance The parties shall do all things reasonably necessary or
appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist each
other in carrying out such terms and provisions including but not limited to executing and
delivering any additional documents and agreements reasonably necessary to implement this
Agreement

1 Attorneys Fees In the event any legal proceeding is commenced to enforce or
interpret provisions of this Agreement the prevailing party in any such legal action shall be
entitled to recover its reasonable attorneysfees and expenses incurred by reason of such action

Signatures on Following Page

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 11

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP 1984i4w



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be
duly executed

CITY

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES TEXAS

a Texas homerule municipality

Mayor

Date 2014

ATTEST

City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Attorney

DEVELOPER

HEB GROCERY COMPANY LP

a Texas Limited Partnership

wo
Todd A Piland Executive Vice President

Date 2014

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Agreement 12

City ofNacogdoches Texas HEB Grocery Company LP w98414w



Exhibit A

Project Description

For purposes of this Agreement the Project means development of a mixeduse commercial
center located on the Property that shall include the development of the following a a grocery
store of no less than 60000 gross squarefeet and b at least 10000 gross square feet of
additional commercial space suitable for retail purposes

The Project may also include at Developerssole discretion a retail gas andor car wash facility
on the Property



Exhibit B

Property Description



roFt

x

N

77647
E

BauARp

0292

b

ELECTwc
NFIER

VL
56

KNxxa

R

BROKEN
CQVC

w

WAIQVSNEF
R9

F
G

FOUND
CN

WAIEH
VALh

em

i

POrNr
OF

m

10

wv

IRAiWTpN
cow

9JIL
x

16T

6

ffPE
lANT

tt

BEGNNBVG

fFRE
DEPT
OOIINECT

1fi11cE

10

CU
WT

LI

PMT
OF

A

24G7
AC
TNT

S

INO

LqV

TAR
BREEDER
FARM
INC

WL
334
PC

122

wisPmoms
I

s9
Pc

Lo
CI

WALNUT
GREEK

ryO

DEVELOPMENT
SUBDIVISION

VOL
7

RG

31

h
y

b

PMT
I9F

A

1
AC

133IST
TRACT

a

tom

LONE
WAR
BREED

FMM
ING

5o
FOU
0

wL
354
PG

40

TP
4

L

E

M

wunuTr
Evt

r

I70
57S
PB

316

p3

PMT
m

A

2a
Ac

1sT
raacry
7

Op

ME

is
iM
bNC

670

41

OF

No

1002
85524
RTT

n

INOU
Roo

III
F11
RLf

ALTA
ACSM
LAND
TITLE
SURVEY

i

17648
ACRE
TRACT

LOCATED
IN

THE
CITY
OF

NACOGDOCHES
TEXAS

AND
BEING
OUT
OF

THE

WILLIAM
FINLEY
SURVEY
ABSTRACT
No

901

AND
THE

SAMUEL
MARSHALL
SURVEY
ABSTRACT
No

365

NACOGDOCHES
COUNTY
TEXAS

SHEET
1

OF

2

PMT
IA

M
81

AC
1ST
TM

s

Ye

CI

BQ
4

W1

1H

a

W

XRIOHT
TRUSTPE

YBL
387
PG

AOB

BRax

3jt
Tf

TxAmc
ycreu
coxma

WC11tR1ET1T

TP

L

T

V

raPFFIL
4GxAL

ESW

PqE

fY
M

e

41

FOLra

Lw1L
as
PG

m

P

raeFrlc
Hm

ya

i

a

n

IELEPRWIE
Box

PROP

TFlItF

j
O

9t

OH
POYIER
IINES

yOJLy

CON
C
MON
T

SIR

12
INCH
1
Roo
w11H

P
M4

Po

Sr

PINF
EHS
k

ul
CF
1

i

4 a
Ae

Fnuwt

h

Ot

PMT
OF

W
Bt

AC
TRACT

VOL
3R

PF
409

i

wxr

98

aYl

r

FcuNO
cu

A
PRU
BY
PIN
Fa
MEn

AS
OEwE

PI

A

11
1
s

Cauc MQNMp

2o

ws

nm

SAYLNi
YAasNALL

5144VE1
A
h5

V

FNCE

tux
fu
14

R
200469

APPR
n

TE

LY
OF

T
9793

tom

N

6215
8

E

CB

IN

321648
E

As

ocurienTEO
Hr
Pw

ac
NMKERS

CD
19862

C

r

v

STE
V1CNTY
MAP

NOT
TO

SCALE

EHAH

A 117648
ACRES

v0

512476
SF

NO
BUILDINGS
EXISTING
ON

1v

1

NORTH
UNIVERSITSIT
Y

HILLS
ADDITION

I

rxN

Sy

THE
SURVEYED

PROPERY

4

5
43
PRNCT

BDR
P

RIUD

AND

KkY

1

2INCN
IRON
R00

2B

1943
AP0
p

FIXING
LS

t915
CAP

4yf

Fpt

t

y

PMT
OF

A

240

AC

FISST
1RACT

MONAAENT

fNCE

y

3

N

lo

FOUND

LawE
WL

334
PG
122

4t

n
m
ayx

S

802957
E

3

APPR02YAlE
YON
OF
MEnJtOS

m1

R

NORTH
UNIVERSITY
HILLS

IRON

A
D0a1E
M
Br
M
FL

WARAER3

ADOI11ON
SECTION
4

8
RRNCT

O

TP
d

L

EBNT

JO
OMBIAOE
SWN
EEMT

i

N

422835
W

480
Pc

VOL
1932
RG
a

62573

A



Exhibit BI

West Retail Site



S

703525
E

olm
f

4

I

S

564033
E

11615

EnsT

oAx
NtEw
cw6GUlNluus

I

I

Tp

I I

GIllG

I

I

I

I

I

I IPMT
6

NGRN
PARK
REPL
M

PRRMERSHIP

N

VOL
2691
PG
33

I

Cuo
iiaaE
Ea

I

SG
APPMBMT

WN4
PAVEMENT

I
EACROACNMEMTT
I

I

xvNP

N63
0638
W

GI

APPRVw

I
aP

w6naN0s

B995

As

EwEO
av

nx
Euc
uARNERs

83109
ACRES

N

143231
W

552024
SF

ON
7041

W

mP
9

2406

N0
BUILDINGS
EXISTING
ON

S

6215

w

YED

3007
im

THE
SURVE

PROPERY

S

5s

3179

41

ya

1

M053503 R
178864

23

a

L
17432

w

Y

T
8723

i

C8

S

321512
W

1

ON

CD
1

N

094224
W

17528

w

5ao
6t

Pmw
aA

WERIMS

61y

N

272523
w

c

MARxeRS

ya

4914

NR1ey
FlMf
SLPL1
A

SAWEL
MMSHALL

SURVEY
365

N

121842
V

4840

Gwc
uauuENT FauNO

cu

3

p

y

A

1
Ac
tsT
mA
T

FE

PLOME
S

M

35433

FRY
ING

flr

PG

2a UT
FWN9

0

3

O cN

W

m

9

R L1
2
INCH

po
RGO

W
RPLS
P915
CAP

PauNo

s
a
PLw
hew

PNE
FIXWU

RN

T
F7

POINT
OF

BEGINNING

se

cyxq
f

axaxcN
cac

MwuMENr
Eallo

1E

NORRI
PaRN
BELL

TESTATE
PMiNERmnP

vaL
uEl
PG
33

3
r

A

41

NT

1

aJ

PAM
GF

A

2W1
AC
15E
IMCT

LGNE
STAR
RRf7
ABU
ING

VCL
3N
PG

122

S
TE

WCINITY
MAP

NOT
TO

SCALE
SCAIE
1

eY WAIEA
METER

WAI

VALVE
IPRxARCN
CwTR0
VALVE

S1R

NN9RANT
E

GFPMTUpT
CANNECnw

IXfAN
WT

101

MANNGIE cas
In
TER 9yNAL

cawmcd

RA3TIC
SIGNAL
PGt

iRAFi1C
9GV

ry

eox

E

nAC
POLE

PRCPERtt
LINE

w
oN
Pnwm
uNEs

GY

CwTROWNG
MGNGMEIIT

oiac
ac
v
ew
sET

ALTA
ACSM
LAND
TITLE
SURVEY

3109
ACRE
TRACT

LOCATED
IN

THE
CITY
OF

NACOGDOCHES
TEXAS

AND
BEING
OUT
OF

THE

WILLIAM
FINLEY
SURVEY
ABSTRACT
No

901
AND
THE

SAMUEL
MARSHALL
SURVEY

ABSTRACT
No

365

NACOGDOCHES
COUNTY
TEXAS

SHEET
1

OF

2

GF

No

1002
85524
RTT



Exhibit C

Qualified Expenditures of Project

For purposes of this Agreement Qualified Expenditures shall mean all costs incurred
by Developer to develop the Property and the Project excluding the acquisition of property
including but not limited to the following

Soft Costs

1 Engineering expenses

2 Surveying expenses

3 Architectural expenses

4 Environmental assessments including wildlife or wetlands assessments

5 Legal expenses

6 Application Fees for local state or federal permits

7 Testing fees related to the Project or infrastructure constructed in connection with Project

8 Expenses incurred for wetlands mitigation

9 Professional consultant studies conducted in connection with the Project such as traffic
impact analysis and reports delineating wetlands areas

Hard Cost

1 Grading and other site work including reclamation soil retention systems including
retaining walls Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan improvements andor wetlands
mitigation and protection

2 Relocation andor installation of water wastewater storm water electrical gas
telecommunication fiber optic andor cable television utilities facilities and lines

3 Construction of or improvements to public infrastructure installed in connection with
the Project including traffic control devices public streets alleys and sidewalk
driveways accelerationdeceleration lanes and all lighting signage and landscaping
installed within public rights of way

4 Construction or installation of other site work including foundations driveways
accelerationdeceleration lanes parking facilities and related lighting

5 Construction of structures including grocery store commercial buildings retail gas
distribution facilities and car wash buildings

6 Landscaping of the Property including any irrigation systems and hardscape

7 Signage and other equipment installed on the Property related to a grocery store
operation including cart return systems

Personalty

1 All fixtures furniture shelving equipment and business personal property installed
within structures used by the Developer



A Report of the
Economic Impact of

in Nacogdoches, Texas

Prepared for:

Nacogdoches Economic Development Corporation

412 North Street, Suite E

November 12, 2014

HEB

,

Nacogdoches, Texas 75961

Prepared by:

Impact DataSource

4709 Cap Rock Drive

Austin, Texas 78735

(512) 892‐0205

Fax (512) 892‐2569

www.impactdatasource.com



Table of Contents

The Report:

   Introduction  ................................................................................................................. 3

   

   Description of the Facility  .....................................................................……………………. 3

   Economic Impact of the Facility  .....................................................…………................... 3

   Costs and Benefits for Local Taxing Districts  ............................................................... 4

   Net Benefits to be Received by the City from the Facility and New Workers  ............. 7

  Property Taxes to be Rebated ....................................................................................... 8

An Analysis of Possible Incentives for the Facility  ....................................................... 9

   Discussion of State Aid for the School District  ............................................................. 9

   Conduct of the Analysis  ..................................……………………….....................................10

   About Impact DataSource  ...………………………................................................................ 10

Impact DataSource       Page 2

Data and Rates Used in the Analysis  .............................................................................. 12

Schedules Showing the Results of Economic Impact Calculations  ................................. 21

Schedules Showing the Results of Costs and Benefits Calculations:

   City of Nacogdoches  .................................................................................................... 26

   Nacogdoches County  ................................................................................................... 30

   Nacogdoches Independent School District  .................................................................. 32

   Nacogdoches County Hospital District  .........................................................................34

Impact DataSource       Page 2



Introduction

This report presents the results of an economic impact analysis performed by Impact DataSource, Austin,

Texas.  The analysis was to determine the impact that HEB will have on the economy of the 

Nacogdoches area and the costs and benefits for local taxing districts over the first years.

Description of the Facility

HEB plans at 60,000 square foot grocery story in Nacogdoches.

An estimated $15 million will be invested in the facility.

In addition, the facility expects to have annual taxable sales of $8,750,000 in taxable sales.

The facility expects to create 110 jobs with an annual payroll of $3 million.

How the facility will impact the economy of the area is discussed next.

Th E ti t d E i I t f th F ilit th Fi t T

A Report of the Projected Economic Impact from

HEB

Impact DataSource       Page 3

The Estimated Economic Impact of the Facility over the First Ten
Years

The facility will have the following economic impact on the Nacogdoches area over the first ten years:

Total number of permanent direct and indirect jobs to be created 152

Number of direct and indirect workers who will move to the City 6

Number of new residents in the City 9

Number of new residential properties to be built in the City 0

Number of new students expected in Nacogdoches ISD 1

Salaries to be paid to direct and indirect workers $50,540,408

Taxable sales and purchases expected in the City $119,834,915

The value of new residential property to be built for direct and $0

    indirect workers who move to the City by Year 10

The facility's assets added to local tax rolls $15,025,000

How this economic activity translates into additional costs and benefits for local taxing districts is discussed

next.

Economic Impact over the First Ten Years

Impact DataSource       Page 3



Costs and Benefits for Local Taxing Districts over the First Ten
Years

Local taxing districts can expect costs and benefits over the first ten years from the facility, as scheduled

below, beginning with the additional revenues to be received.

Additional Revenues for Local Taxing Districts

Local taxing districts can expect to receive the following revenues over the first 10 years from the facility, 

its employees and workers in indirect jobs created in the community.

Utility  Building

Sales  Property Franchise Permits and

Taxes Taxes Utilities Fees Fees

City of Nacogdoches* $1,198,349 $385,941 $412,585 $92,044 $84,000

Nacogdoches County* $0 $362,055

Nacogdoches ISD $1,834,032

Nacogdoches County Hospital District $1,198,349 $0

Total $2 396 698 $2 582 027 $412 585 $92 044 $84 000

Ten Years of the Facility's Operation

Additional Revenues For Local Taxing Districts Over the First

Impact DataSource       Page 4

Total $2,396,698 $2,582,027 $412,585 $92,044 $84,000

Additional

State and

Hotel Other Taxes Federal Total

Occupancy and User School Additional

Taxes Fees Funding Revenue

City of Nacogdoches $0 $3,942 $2,176,862

Nacogdoches County $3,285 $365,339

Nacogdoches ISD $63,350 $1,897,382

Nacogdoches County Hospital District $1,198,349

Total  $0 $7,227 $63,350 $5,637,932

*City and county property tax collections after some taxes may be abated for the facility

Impact DataSource       Page 4



Additional Costs for Local Taxing Districts

Local taxing districts will incur the following costs over the first 10 years, as a result of the facility and direct

and indirect employees.

Reduction

in State

School

Funding as a

Costs of  Result of

Costs of  Providing  Costs of Property 

Services to Monthly Educating being Added

New  Utility  New  to Local

Residents Services Students Tax Rolls Total

City of Nacogdoches $19,709 $400,208 $419,917

Nacogdoches County $6,570 $6,570

Nacogdoches ISD $56,311 $1,580,713 $1,637,024

Nacogdoches County Hospital District $0

Total  $26,279 $400,208 $56,311 $1,580,713 $2,063,511

Costs for Local Taxing Districts Over the First 10 Years

of the Facility's Operation

Impact DataSource       Page 5

Additional Net Benefits

The additional public benefits less additional public costs will result in the following net benefits for the City,

County and other local taxing districts over the first ten years of the facility's operation:

Benefits Costs Net Benefits

City of Nacogdoches $2,176,862 $419,917 $1,756,944

Nacogdoches County $365,339 $6,570 $358,770

Nacogdoches ISD $1,897,382 $1,637,024 $260,358

Nacogdoches County Hospital District $1,198,349 $0 $1,198,349

   Total $5,637,932 $2,063,511 $3,574,421

Net Benefits for Local Taxing Districts Over the

First 10 Years of the Facility's Operation

Impact DataSource       Page 5



Discounted Cash Flow for Local Taxing Districts

The discounted cash flow over the first ten years for each local taxing district from the new facility is as 

follows:

City of Nacogdoches $1,295,500

Nacogdoches County $235,816

Nacogdoches ISD $197,057

Nacogdoches County Hospital District $895,683

Total $2,624,056

The above discounted cash flow or present value of net benefits is a way of expressing in today's dollars, 

dollars to be paid or received in the future.  Today's dollar and a dollar to be received or paid at differing times

in the future are not comparable because of the time value of money.  The time value of money is the interest

rate or each taxing entity's discount rate.  This analysis uses a discount rate of 6% to make the dollars

comparable ‐‐ by expressing them in today's dollars or in present value.

Discounted Cash Flow Over the

First Ten Years

Impact DataSource       Page 6Impact DataSource       Page 6



Net Benefits to be Received by the City from (1) the Facility and

(2) New Workers

The City of Nacogdoches will receive benefits from spending and investments by the facility and from 

spending by new workers.  These benefits, over the first ten years, are shown below for these two 

categories.

New Total

The Facility Workers Benefits

Additional revenues:

Sales taxes $1,122,539 $75,811 $1,198,349

Property taxes* $385,941 $0 $385,941

Utility revenues $341,631 $70,954 $412,585

Utility franchise fees $87,897 $4,147 $92,044

Hotel occupancy taxes $0 $0

Other taxes and user fees $3,942 $3,942

Building permits and fees $84,000 $84,000

Total additional revenues $2 022 008 $154 854 $2 176 862

Schedule of Benefits for the City from

the Facility and From New Workers

Benefits from:

Impact DataSource       Page 7

   Total additional revenues $2,022,008 $154,854 $2,176,862

Additional costs:

Costs of providing utilities $331,382 $68,826 $400,208

Costs of providing municipal services $19,709 $19,709

   for new residents

   Total additional costs $331,382 $88,535 $419,917

Net benefits $1,690,625 $66,319 $1,756,944

Percent of total net benefits 96% 4%

  for the City

*Property tax collections after some taxes are rebated to the facility.

Impact DataSource       Page 7



Property Taxes to be Rebated

The City of Nacogdoches and Nacogdoches County are considering rebating property taxes that 

the firm may pay at the following percentages:

Year 1 100%

Year 2 100%

Year 3 100%

Year 4 95%

Year 5 85%

Year 6 0%

Year 7 0%

Year 8 0%

Year 9 0%

Year 10 0%

If taxes are rebated as proposed, the following property taxes will be rebated for the facility:

Hospital 

Taxes to be Rebated

Percentage of Property

Property Taxes to be Rebated for the Facility

Impact DataSource       Page 8

City County District Total

Year 1 $82,188 $77,102 $0 $159,290

Year 2 $78,809 $73,932 $0 $152,741

Year 3 $77,738 $72,926 $0 $150,664

Year 4 $72,856 $68,347 $0 $141,203

Year 5 $64,318 $60,337 $0 $124,655

Year 6 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 7 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 8 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 9 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 10 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total $375,909 $352,644 $0 $728,553

An analysis of other incentives that the City may consider for the facility is next.

Impact DataSource       Page 8



Analysis of Possible Incentives for the Facility

The city is considering the following city incentives for the project:

Reimbursement of development cost $223,000

Total $223,000

Financial incentives that may be offered the facility may be considered as investments that the City is

making in the facility.

Four calculations analyzing possible investments were made ‐‐ net benefits, discounted cash flow, rate of

return on investment and  payback period.  Net benefits and discounted cash flow for the City are scheduled

above.  Rate of return on investment and payback period are discussed and scheduled below.  

Rate of return on investment is the City's average annual rate of return from additional revenues that the City

will receive on the investment of incentives that the City may make in the facility.  Payback period is the

number of years that it will take the City to recover the costs of incentives from the additional revenues that it

will receive from the facility.

Average annual rates of return on investment each year over the first ten years and payback periods for 

the possible levels of other incentives are shown below.

Possible City Incentives for the Facility

Impact DataSource       Page 9

p

Annual Payback

Rate of Period

Incentives Return (In years)

$223,000 78.8% 1.0               

Discussion of State Aid for the School District

This analysis seeks to calculate the impact on the school district's finances from the facility by 

generally, and at a summary level, mimicking the district's school funding formula.

According to the Texas Education Agency, any property added to local tax rolls and local taxes that this 

generates reduces state funding equivalent to local taxes collected for maintenance and operations. 

The school district retains local taxes received for debt services and corresponding state funding is not 

reduced.  

Rates of Return and Payback Periods

Possible Other City Incentives

Impact DataSource       Page 9



However, according to the Texas Education Agency, the school district will receive state aid for each 

new child that moves to the District.  The additional revenues for the school district are calculated in

this analysis.

Conduct of the Analysis

This analysis was conducted by Impact DataSource using data, rates and information supplied by the firm

and the City of Nacogdoches.  In addition, Impact DataSource used certain estimates and assumptions.

Using this data, the economic impact from the facility and the costs and benefits for the City of Nacogdoches,

Nacogdoches County, Nacogdoches ISD, and Nacogdoches County Hospital District were calculated for

a ten year period.

In addition to the direct economic impact of the facility and its employees, spin‐off or indirect and induced

benefits were also calculated.  Indirect jobs and salaries are created in new or existing area firms, such as

maintenance companies and service firms, that may supply goods and services to the facility.  In addition,

induced jobs and salaries are created in new or existing local businesses, such as retail stores, gas stations,

banks, restaurants, and service companies that may supply goods and services to new workers and their

families.

To estimate the indirect and induced economic impact of the facility and its employees on the Nacogdoches

area, regional economic multipliers were used.  Regional economic multipliers for Texas and areas of the

state are included in the US Department of Commerce’s Regional Input‐Output Modeling System (RIMS II).

Impact DataSource       Page 10

Two types of regional economic multipliers were used in this analysis: an employment multiplier and an

earnings multiplier.

An employment multiplier was used to estimate the number of indirect and induced jobs created and 

supported in the Nacogdoches area.  An earnings multiplier was used to estimate the amount of salaries to

be paid to workers in these new indirect and induced jobs.  The multipliers show the estimated number

of indirect and induced jobs created for every one direct job at the facility and the amount of salaries

paid to these workers for every dollar paid to a direct worker at the facility.  The multipliers used in this

analysis are below:

Employment multiplier 0.3778          

Earnings multiplier 0.5386          

About Impact DataSource

Impact DataSource is a twenty‐year‐old Austin economic consulting, research and analysis firm.  The firm

has conducted economic impact analyses of numerous projects in Texas and 35 other states.  In

addition, the firm has developed economic impact analysis computer programs for several clients, including 

the New Mexico Economic Development Department.

Impact DataSource       Page 10



The firm’s principal, Jerry Walker, performed this economic impact analysis.  He is an economist and has

Bachelor of Science and Master of Business Administration degrees in accounting and economics from

Nicholls State University, Thibodaux, Louisiana.

Data used in the analysis, along with schedules of the results of calculations, are on the following pages.

Impact DataSource       Page 11Impact DataSource       Page 11



Data and Rates Used in this Analysis

Impact DataSource       Page 12Impact DataSource       Page 12



Local Tax Rates:

Sales tax rates:

City of Nacogdoches 1.0%

Nacogdoches County 0.0%

Nacogdoches County Hospital District 1.0%

City of Nacogdoches hotel occupancy tax rate 7%

Property tax rates, per $100 of valuation:

City of Nacogdoches $0.5639

Nacogdoches County $0.5290

Nacogdoches ISD:

M&O $1.1700

I&S $0.1875

Total ISD $1.3575

Some City Rates:

Annual marginal cost of providing municipal services, excluding utilities, to  $300

each new household

Estimated annual other taxes and user fees to be collected by the city from $60

Impact DataSource       Page 13

Estimated annual other taxes and user fees to be collected by the city from  $60

each new household ‐‐ those revenues that are in addition to sales and 

property taxes, utilities and utility franchise fees

Annual increase expected in the city's other revenues and marginal costs 2%

The city's estimated annual water, wastewater and garbage collection billings $1,080

per household

Estimated

Utility Monthly

Service Billing

Water $35 $420

Wastewater $30 $360

Solid waste $25 $300

The city's cost of providing water, wastewater and solid waste services, 97%

as a percent of utility billings

Annual increase expected in city‐owned utility billings 2%

Estimated Annual Billing

(Monthly billing x 12)

Impact DataSource       Page 13



The city's utility franchise fee percentages:

Electricity, as a percent of electric bill 3%

Natural gas 2%

Cable 3%

Telephone monthly line access charge:

Residential $0.81

Non‐residential $1.77

Annual utility franchise fees collected from utility providers for each household $58.92

in the city as detailed below

Monthly

Utility Utility

Utility Estimated Franchise Franchise

Monthly Fee Fee Franchise Fee Collections

Service Billing Percentage Collections

Electricity $70 3% $2.10 $25.20

Natural gas $40 2% $0.80 $9.60

Cable $40 3% $1.20 $14.40

Telephone 1 line $0.81 $0.81 $9.72

Some County Rates:

(Monthly collections x 12)

Estimated Annual Utility

Impact DataSource       Page 14

Some County Rates:

Annual marginal cost of providing county services to each new household $100

Annual miscellaneous taxes and user fees to be collected from each $50

new household, those county revenues other than property and sales taxes

Annual increase expected in other county revenues and marginal costs 2%

Some School District Rates:

Estimated annual state, federal and other funding received by the district for $4,500

for each child enrolled

Average annual cost of providing services to each child in the district $8,000

Average annual cost for each new child, as a percent of average annual cost   50%

Annual marginal cost of providing services to each new child $4,000

Impact DataSource       Page 14



Other Community Rates:

Expected inflation rate over the first ten years 3.5%

Discount rate used in analysis to compute discounted cash flows 6%

Percent of a typical worker's salary that will be spent on taxable goods 30%

and services

Average taxable value of a new single family residence in the community $130,000

built for some individuals

Percent annual increase in the taxable value of residential 2%

property and commercial real property on local tax rolls over the first ten years

Depreciation rates:

To estimate the annual taxable or depreciable value of furniture, fixtures and equipment at the facility

being analyzed in this analysis, this analysis uses straight line depreciation, a ten year life and a 20% 

residual value.  Therefore, property taxes on the facility's furniture, fixtures and equipment are calculated

on the following percentages of the costs of such equipment purchased each year:

Year 1 90%

Year 2 80%

Year 3 70%

Year 4 60%

Impact DataSource       Page 15

Year 4 60%

Year 5 50%

Year 6 40%

Year 7 30%

Year 8 20%

Year 9 20%

Year 10 20%

Impact DataSource       Page 15



The Facility's Investments, Assets and Construction:

The estimated investments at the facility each year:

Buildings and

Other Real

Property Furniture,

Other Real Fixtures,

Improve‐ and

Land Ments Equipment Total

Year 1 $0 $10,500,000 $4,500,000 $15,000,000

Year 2 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 3 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 4 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 5 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 6 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 7 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 8 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 9 $0 $0 $0 $0

Year 10 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total $0 $10,500,000 $4,500,000 $15,000,000

The facility's taxable inventories:

Impact DataSource       Page 16

The facility's taxable inventories:

Year 1 $25,000

Year 2 $25,750

Year 3 $26,523

Year 4 $27,318

Year 5 $28,138

Year 6 $28,982

Year 7 $29,851

Year 8 $30,747

Year 9 $31,669

Year 10 $32,619

Estimated annual increase in the volume and value of inventories 3%

Impact DataSource       Page 16



Spending During Construction:

Estimated spending for construction:

Year 1 $10,500,000

Year 2 $0

Year 3 $0

Year 4 $0

Year 5 $0

Year 6 $0

Year 7 $0

Year 8 $0

Year 9 $0

Year 10 $0

Percent of construction costs for:

Materials 60%

Labor 40%

Estimated percent of construction materials that will be purchased in the 20%

city and be subject to sales tax

Percent of taxable spending by construction workers that will be in the city 20%

Estimated percent of furniture fixtures and equipment that will be 25%

Impact DataSource       Page 17

Estimated percent of furniture, fixtures and equipment that will be 25%

purchased in the city and be subject to sales tax

Estimated building permits and tap fees to be paid to the city:

Year 1 $84,000

Year 2 $0

Year 3 $0

Year 4 $0

Year 5 $0

Year 6 $0

Year 7 $0

Year 8 $0

Year 9 $0

Year 10 $0

Impact DataSource       Page 17



Activities During the Facility's Operations:

The facility's taxable sales subject to sales tax in the city:

Year 1 $8,750,000

Year 2 $9,056,250

Year 3 $9,373,219

Year 4 $9,701,281

Year 5 $10,040,826

Year 6 $10,392,255

Year 7 $10,755,984

Year 8 $11,132,444

Year 9 $11,522,079

Year 10 $11,925,352

Expected annual increase in taxable sales after the first year 4%

Estimated annual utilities at the facility:

Solid  Natural

Water Wastewater Waste Electricity Gas Cable Telephone

Year 1 $9,600 $9,600 $12,000 $240,000 $18,000 $4,200 $60,000

Year 2 $9,792 $9,792 $12,240 $244,800 $18,360 $4,284 $61,200

Year 3 $9,988 $9,988 $12,485 $249,696 $18,727 $4,370 $62,424

Year 4 $10 188 $10 188 $12 734 $254 690 $19 102 $4 457 $63 672

Impact DataSource       Page 18

Year 4 $10,188 $10,188 $12,734 $254,690 $19,102 $4,457 $63,672

Year 5 $10,391 $10,391 $12,989 $259,784 $19,484 $4,546 $64,946

Year 6 $10,599 $10,599 $13,249 $264,979 $19,873 $4,637 $66,245

Year 7 $10,811 $10,811 $13,514 $270,279 $20,271 $4,730 $67,570

Year 8 $11,027 $11,027 $13,784 $275,685 $20,676 $4,824 $68,921

Year 9 $11,248 $11,248 $14,060 $281,198 $21,090 $4,921 $70,300

Year 10 $11,473 $11,473 $14,341 $286,822 $21,512 $5,019 $71,706

Annual 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

increase

Estimated number of telephone lines at the facility 15                  

Impact DataSource       Page 18



The facility's estimated local taxable purchases of materials, supplies and services for its operations:

Year 1 $300,000

Year 2 $309,000

Year 3 $318,270

Year 4 $327,818

Year 5 $337,653

Year 6 $347,782

Year 7 $358,216

Year 8 $368,962

Year 9 $380,031

Year 10 $391,432

Expected annual increase in taxable purchases after the first year 3%

The facility's total taxable purchases and taxable utilities:

Taxable

Purchases

of Supplies, Utilities

Materials and Subject to Percent Taxable

Services Sales Tax Taxable  Utilities Total

Year 1 $300,000 $322,200 100% $322,200 $622,200

Year 2 $309,000 $328,644 100% $328,644 $637,644

Year 3 $318 270 $335 217 100% $335 217 $653 487

Utilities Subject to Sales Tax

Impact DataSource       Page 19

Year 3 $318,270 $335,217 100% $335,217 $653,487

Year 4 $327,818 $341,921 100% $341,921 $669,739

Year 5 $337,653 $348,760 100% $348,760 $686,412

Year 6 $347,782 $355,735 100% $355,735 $703,517

Year 7 $358,216 $362,850 100% $362,850 $721,065

Year 8 $368,962 $370,107 100% $370,107 $739,069

Year 9 $380,031 $377,509 100% $377,509 $757,540

Year 10 $391,432 $385,059 100% $385,059 $776,491

Number of new workers hired at the facility each year:

Year 1 110

Year 2 0

Year 3 0

Year 4 0

Year 5 0

Year 6 0

Year 7 0

Year 8 0

Year 9 0

Year 10 0

Total 110

Impact DataSource       Page 19



Number of new workers who will move to the city to take job at the facility:

Year 1 6

Year 2 0

Year 3 0

Year 4 0

Year 5 0

Year 6 0

Year 7 0

Year 8 0

Year 9 0

Year 10 0

Total 6

Expected annual payroll $3,000,000

Percent of expected increase in employee salaries after year 1 2.0%

Multipliers for calculating the number of indirect and induced jobs and earnings in the area:

Earnings 0.5386          

Employment 0.3778          

This cost‐benefit analysis uses the above multipliers to project the indirect and induced benefits

in the community as a result of the direct economic activity The employment multiplier shows

Impact DataSource       Page 20

in the community as a result of the direct economic activity.  The employment multiplier shows

the number of spin‐off jobs what will be created from each direct job.  Similarly, the earnings 

multiplier estimates the salaries and wages to be paid to workers in these spin‐off jobs for 

each $1 paid to direct workers.

Percent employees to be hired in spin‐off jobs created at the facility 0%

who will move to the city to take a job

Percent of workers who move to the community that will buy a new home or 0%

require that new residential property be built for them

The number of people in a typical worker's household 1.5

The number of school children in a typical worker's household 0.2

Percent of retail shopping by a typical worker in other parts of the city 50%

Impact DataSource       Page 20



Schedules Showing the Results of Economic Impact Calculations

Impact DataSource       Page 21Impact DataSource       Page 21



Number of local jobs added each year and worker salaries to be paid:

Direct Indirect Total Direct  Indirect Total

Year Jobs Jobs Jobs Salaries Salaries Salaries

1 110 42 152 $3,000,000 $1,615,680 $4,615,680

2 0 0 0 $3,060,000 $1,647,994 $4,707,994

3 0 0 0 $3,121,200 $1,680,953 $4,802,153

4 0 0 0 $3,183,624 $1,714,573 $4,898,197

5 0 0 0 $3,247,296 $1,748,864 $4,996,160

6 0 0 0 $3,312,242 $1,783,841 $5,096,084

7 0 0 0 $3,378,487 $1,819,518 $5,198,005

8 0 0 0 $3,446,057 $1,855,908 $5,301,965

9 0 0 0 $3,514,978 $1,893,027 $5,408,005

10 0 0 0 $3,585,278 $1,930,887 $5,516,165

Total 110 42 152 $32,849,163 $17,691,245 $50,540,408

Number of direct and indirect workers and their families who will move

to the area and their children who will attend local public schools:

NewWorkers Total Total

Impact DataSource       Page 22

New Workers Total Total

Moving to New New

Year the Area Residents Students

1 6 9 1

2 0 0 0

3 0 0 0

4 0 0 0

5 0 0 0

6 0 0 0

7 0 0 0

8 0 0 0

9 0 0 0

10 0 0 0

Total 6 9 1

Impact DataSource       Page 22



Number of new residential properties that may be built in the city for direct and indirect workers

who will move to the community:

New

Residential

Year Properties

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

8 0

9 0

10 0

Total 0

Local taxable spending on which sales taxes will be collected:

Impact DataSource       Page 23

Local 

Construction

Workers' The Facility's

Spending and Direct and Local

Furniture, Indirect Taxable  Purchases

Fixtures and Workers' Visitors' Sales at the and Taxable

Year Equipment Spending Spending Facility Utilities Total

1 $2,637,000 $692,352 $0 $8,750,000 $622,200 $12,701,552

2 $0 $706,199 $0 $9,056,250 $637,644 $10,400,093

3 $0 $720,323 $0 $9,373,219 $653,487 $10,747,029

4 $0 $734,729 $0 $9,701,281 $669,739 $11,105,750

5 $0 $749,424 $0 $10,040,826 $686,412 $11,476,663

6 $0 $764,413 $0 $10,392,255 $703,517 $11,860,185

7 $0 $779,701 $0 $10,755,984 $721,065 $12,256,750

8 $0 $795,295 $0 $11,132,444 $739,069 $12,666,807

9 $0 $811,201 $0 $11,522,079 $757,540 $13,090,819

10 $0 $827,425 $0 $11,925,352 $776,491 $13,529,267

Total $2,637,000 $7,581,061 $0 $102,649,690 $6,967,164 $119,834,915

Impact DataSource       Page 23



Local spending by visitors on lodging by out‐of‐town visitors and out‐of‐town truckers:

Spending 

Year on Lodging

1 $0

2 $0

3 $0

4 $0

5 $0

6 $0

7 $0

8 $0

9 $0

10 $0

Total $0

Taxable value of new residential property built for direct and indirect workers who move to the

community and the value of the facility's property on local tax rolls:

Value of

Impact DataSource       Page 24

Value of
Property at

New  the Facility Total

Residential on Local Taxable

Year Property Tax Rolls Property

1 $0 $14,575,000 $14,575,000

2 $0 $13,975,750 $13,975,750

3 $0 $13,785,723 $13,785,723

4 $0 $13,600,002 $13,600,002

5 $0 $13,418,675 $13,418,675

6 $0 $13,241,830 $13,241,830

7 $0 $13,069,557 $13,069,557

8 $0 $12,901,946 $12,901,946

9 $0 $13,144,093 $13,144,093

10 $0 $13,391,091 $13,391,091

Impact DataSource       Page 24



Schedules Showing the Results of Costs and Benefits Calculations

Impact DataSource       Page 25Impact DataSource       Page 25



Costs and Benefits for the City of Nacogdoches:

Benefits:

Sales tax collections on the facility's taxable sales:

Sales Taxes Sales Taxes

to be to be 

Taxable  Rebated Retained by

Sales at the to the  the City 

Year Facility Facility After Rebates

1 $87,500 $0 $87,500

2 $90,563 $0 $90,563

3 $93,732 $0 $93,732

4 $97,013 $0 $97,013

5 $100,408 $0 $100,408

6 $103,923 $0 $103,923

7 $107,560 $0 $107,560

8 $111,324 $0 $111,324

9 $115,221 $0 $115,221

10 $119,254 $0 $119,254

Total $1,026,497 $0 $1,026,497

Other sales tax collections:

Impact DataSource       Page 26

Other sales tax collections:

During

Construction

and On The Facility's

Purchases of Direct and Local

Furniture, Indirect On Purchases  Total Other

Fixtures and Workers' Visitors' and Taxable Sales Tax

Year Equipment Spending Spending Utilities Collections

1 $26,370 $6,924 $0 $6,222 $39,516

2 $0 $7,062 $0 $6,376 $13,438

3 $0 $7,203 $0 $6,535 $13,738

4 $0 $7,347 $0 $6,697 $14,045

5 $0 $7,494 $0 $6,864 $14,358

6 $0 $7,644 $0 $7,035 $14,679

7 $0 $7,797 $0 $7,211 $15,008

8 $0 $7,953 $0 $7,391 $15,344

9 $0 $8,112 $0 $7,575 $15,687

10 $0 $8,274 $0 $7,765 $16,039

Total $26,370 $75,811 $0 $69,672 $171,852

Impact DataSource       Page 26



Costs and benefits for the City of Nacogdoches ‐ Continued

Property tax collections on:

New Total Taxes

Residential Taxes Taxes After

Year Property Collected Abated Abatement Total

1 $0 $82,188 $82,188 $0 $0

2 $0 $78,809 $78,809 $0 $0

3 $0 $77,738 $77,738 $0 $0

4 $0 $76,690 $72,856 $3,835 $3,835

5 $0 $75,668 $64,318 $11,350 $11,350

6 $0 $74,671 $0 $74,671 $74,671

7 $0 $73,699 $0 $73,699 $73,699

8 $0 $72,754 $0 $72,754 $72,754

9 $0 $74,120 $0 $74,120 $74,120

10 $0 $75,512 $0 $75,512 $75,512

Total $0 $761,850 $375,909 $385,941 $385,941

Utilities and utility franchise fees collected by the city from new residents and
from the facility:

Property at the Facility

Impact DataSource       Page 27

Utility

Franchise

Year Utilities Fees Total

1 $37,680 $8,358 $46,038

2 $38,434 $8,535 $46,969

3 $39,202 $8,717 $47,919

4 $39,986 $8,902 $48,888

5 $40,786 $9,091 $49,877

6 $41,602 $9,284 $50,886

7 $42,434 $9,482 $51,916

8 $43,282 $9,684 $52,966

9 $44,148 $9,890 $54,039

10 $45,031 $10,102 $55,133

Total $412,585 $92,044 $504,630

Impact DataSource       Page 27



Costs and benefits for the City of Nacogdoches ‐ Continued

Other city revenues, including hotel occupancy taxes, other taxes and user fees 

collected from new residents and building permits on construction at the facility:

Hotel Other Building

Occupancy Taxes and Permits and Total Other

Year Taxes User Fees Fees Revenues

1 $0 $360 $84,000 $84,360

2 $0 $367 $0 $367

3 $0 $375 $0 $375

4 $0 $382 $0 $382

5 $0 $390 $0 $390

6 $0 $397 $0 $397

7 $0 $405 $0 $405

8 $0 $414 $0 $414

9 $0 $422 $0 $422

10 $0 $430 $0 $430

Total $0 $3,942 $84,000 $87,942

Impact DataSource       Page 28Impact DataSource       Page 28



Costs and benefits for the City of Nacogdoches ‐ Continued

Costs:

The costs of providing municipal services and utility services to new residents:

Cost of

Services to

New Costs of

Year Residents Utilities Total Costs

1 $1,800 $36,550 $38,350

2 $1,836 $37,281 $39,117

3 $1,873 $38,026 $39,899

4 $1,910 $38,787 $40,697

5 $1,948 $39,562 $41,511

6 $1,987 $40,354 $42,341

7 $2,027 $41,161 $43,188

8 $2,068 $41,984 $44,052

9 $2,109 $42,824 $44,933

10 $2,151 $43,680 $45,831

Total $19,709 $400,208 $419,917

Impact DataSource       Page 29

Net Benefits for the City of Nacogdoches:

Net  Cumulative

Year Benefits Costs Benefits Net Benefits

1 $257,414 $38,350 $219,064 $219,064

2 $151,337 $39,117 $112,221 $331,285

3 $155,764 $39,899 $115,865 $447,149

4 $164,162 $40,697 $123,465 $570,614

5 $176,383 $41,511 $134,873 $705,487

6 $244,556 $42,341 $202,215 $907,702

7 $248,588 $43,188 $205,400 $1,113,102

8 $252,802 $44,052 $208,750 $1,321,852

9 $259,488 $44,933 $214,555 $1,536,408

10 $266,368 $45,831 $220,537 $1,756,944

Total $2,176,862 $419,917 $1,756,944

Impact DataSource       Page 29



Benefits for Nacogdoches County:

Miscellaneous taxes and user fees to be collected from new residents:

Misc. Taxes

and User

Year Fees

1 $300

2 $306

3 $312

4 $318

5 $325

6 $331

7 $338

8 $345

9 $351

10 $359

Total $3,285

Property tax collections on:

Impact DataSource       Page 30

New Total Taxes

Residential Taxes Taxes After

Year Property Collected Abated Abatement Total

1 $0 $77,102 $77,102 $0 $0

2 $0 $73,932 $73,932 $0 $0

3 $0 $72,926 $72,926 $0 $0

4 $0 $71,944 $68,347 $3,597 $3,597

5 $0 $70,985 $60,337 $10,648 $10,648

6 $0 $70,049 $0 $70,049 $70,049

7 $0 $69,138 $0 $69,138 $69,138

8 $0 $68,251 $0 $68,251 $68,251

9 $0 $69,532 $0 $69,532 $69,532

10 $0 $70,839 $0 $70,839 $70,839

Total $0 $714,698 $352,644 $362,055 $362,055

Property at the Facility

Impact DataSource       Page 30



Costs and benefits for Nacogdoches County, continued

Costs of providing county services to new residents:

Costs of

County

Year Services

1 $600

2 $612

3 $624

4 $637

5 $649

6 $662

7 $676

8 $689

9 $703

10 $717

Total $6,570

Total Benefits for the County:

Impact DataSource       Page 31

Cumulative

Net  Net

Year Benefits Costs Benefits Benefits

1 $300 $600 ($300) ($300)

2 $306 $612 ($306) ($606)

3 $312 $624 ($312) ($918)

4 $3,916 $637 $3,279 $2,361

5 $10,972 $649 $10,323 $12,684

6 $70,381 $662 $69,718 $82,402

7 $69,476 $676 $68,800 $151,202

8 $68,596 $689 $67,907 $219,109

9 $69,884 $703 $69,181 $288,289

10 $71,197 $717 $70,480 $358,770

Total $365,339 $6,570 $358,770

Impact DataSource       Page 31



Costs and Benefits for the Nacogdoches ISD:

Benefits, including property taxes and additional state and federal school funding:

Property Tax Collections on: Additional

New The State

Residential Facility's Total  School

Year Property Property Collections Funding Total

1 $0 $197,856 $197,856 $5,400 $203,256

2 $0 $189,721 $189,721 $5,589 $195,310

3 $0 $187,141 $187,141 $5,785 $192,926

4 $0 $184,620 $184,620 $5,987 $190,607

5 $0 $182,159 $182,159 $6,197 $188,355

6 $0 $179,758 $179,758 $6,414 $186,171

7 $0 $177,419 $177,419 $6,638 $184,057

8 $0 $175,144 $175,144 $6,870 $182,014

9 $0 $178,431 $178,431 $7,111 $185,542

10 $0 $181,784 $181,784 $7,360 $189,144

Total $0 $1,834,032 $1,834,032 $63,350 $1,897,382

Impact DataSource       Page 32

Costs of educating children of new workers who move to the district:

Cost of

Educating 

New

Year Students

1 $4,800

2 $4,968

3 $5,142

4 $5,322

5 $5,508

6 $5,701

7 $5,900

8 $6,107

9 $6,321

10 $6,542

Total $56,311

Impact DataSource       Page 32



Costs and Benefits for Nacogdoches ISD ‐ Continued

Reduction in State aid to the school district as a result of new residential property for 

the facility's employees and the facility's property being added to the school district's tax

rolls:

Reduction in

State Aid for the

Year School District

1 $170,528

2 $163,516

3 $161,293

4 $159,120

5 $156,999

6 $154,929

7 $152,914

8 $150,953

9 $153,786

10 $156,676

Total $1,580,713

Impact DataSource       Page 33

Net Benefits for the School District:

Net  Cumulative

Year Benefits Costs Benefits Net Benefits

1 $203,256 $175,328 $27,928 $27,928

2 $195,310 $168,484 $26,826 $54,754

3 $192,926 $166,435 $26,491 $81,245

4 $190,607 $164,442 $26,165 $107,410

5 $188,355 $162,507 $25,849 $133,258

6 $186,171 $160,630 $25,541 $158,799

7 $184,057 $158,814 $25,243 $184,042

8 $182,014 $157,060 $24,955 $208,997

9 $185,542 $160,107 $25,435 $234,432

10 $189,144 $163,218 $25,926 $260,358

Total $1,897,382 $1,637,024 $260,358

Impact DataSource       Page 33



Benefits for Nacogdoches County Hospital District

Sales tax collections on spending:

During

Construction

and On The Facility's

Purchases of Direct and Local

Furniture, Indirect On Taxable  Purchases 

Fixtures and Workers' Visitors' Sales at the and Taxable

Year Equipment Spending Spending Facility Utilities Total

1 $26,370 $6,924 $0 $87,500 $6,222 $127,016

2 $0 $7,062 $0 $90,563 $6,376 $104,001

3 $0 $7,203 $0 $93,732 $6,535 $107,470

4 $0 $7,347 $0 $97,013 $6,697 $111,058

5 $0 $7,494 $0 $100,408 $6,864 $114,767

6 $0 $7,644 $0 $103,923 $7,035 $118,602

7 $0 $7,797 $0 $107,560 $7,211 $122,568

8 $0 $7,953 $0 $111,324 $7,391 $126,668

9 $0 $8,112 $0 $115,221 $7,575 $130,908

10 $0 $8,274 $0 $119,254 $7,765 $135,293

Total $26,370 $75,811 $0 $1,026,497 $69,672 $1,198,349

Impact DataSource       Page 34Impact DataSource       Page 34



 
 

ITEM NO.  8 
 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Consider contract with GDVF for the transfer and recycling of mattresses 

received at the City landfill. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 
 

DESCRIPTION: The City landfill receives hundreds of mattresses each year.  If SFA engages 

in a dormitory remodeling project, hundreds of mattresses can be sent to the 

landfill in a matter of days.  Mattresses are a difficult material to process at 

the landfill for several reasons.   

Each cubic yard of landfill space has been calculated and is accounted for in 

the anticipated lifespan of the landfill, and thus is reflected in the landfill 

rates.  Typically, the City’s landfill compacts 2.4 yards of waste into 1 cubic 

yard of waste.  A mattress is roughly 1 cubic yard of material.  Mattresses do 

not compact, therefore, no compaction gains are available when they are added 

to the landfill, and for every mattress that enters the landfill 1.4 yards of 

space is lost. 

Due to their construction and shape, mattresses tend to “float” to the surface, 

meaning they do not retain a daily cover well. The large rectangular shape of a 

mattress means it cannot fill small voids, and thus smaller pieces of waste shift 

around and beneath it. 

Once exposed during compaction or daily cover operation, the springs of 

mattresses easily enter into the tracks of landfill equipment, resulting in lost 

time and costly repairs if staff are unable to manually remove the coils from 

the equipment. 

GDVF is a company that creates decorative items (wreaths, Christmas trees, 

wall art, chandeliers, etc.) from the coils of mattresses and box springs.  

Staff recently contacted GDVF to begin transferring some mattresses as a pilot 

project.  During this 90 day pilot project, over 700 mattresses were diverted 

from the landfill. 

The contract between GDVF and the City accomplishes the following: 

- Grants exclusive rights to GDVF to any mattresses received by the 

city 

- Specifies the transfer of the mattresses is the responsibility of 

GDVF 

- Specifies GDVF accepts full responsibility for the proper final 

disposal of the mattresses and/or any remaining materials 

- Allows either party to terminate the agreement with 30 days notice 

 
COST: $0 - A cost savings will occur, but is difficult to predict. 



 

 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No 

 

FUNDING FROM CURRENT BUDGET 

 
FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Adopted Budget Balance  Requested 
   N/A 

 
SCHEDULE: Upon approval of the contract, staff will ensure its immediate execution. 

 

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Approval of the contract. 
 

CITY CONTACT: Cary Walker, Public Works Manager, walkercl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us, 559-2582   

 
ATTACHMENTS: None.  A copy of the contract can be provided by staff. 

mailto:walkercl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


          
 

 ITEM NO.  9 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT:   Receive update on Payday Lending 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 18, 2014 

 

DESCRIPTION: Payday lending has been previously discussed with Council, and this is an 

update.  This largely unregulated and seemingly predatory practice 

continues to proliferate.  About 34 of Texas’ 1200 cities have passed 

ordinances regulating the practice since the last three state legislative 

sessions have not resulted in adequate regulation.  Representative Clardy 

and Senator Nichols are on record favoring reasonable lending regulation 

at the State level. 

 

 Early ordinances have drawn litigation which is on appeal by the lenders 

and thus the law on validity of various types of payday lending 

ordinances is not yet fully settled. 

 

COST:   $0.00 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?:  

 

FUNDING: N/A  Acct. Name & No. Original Budget Requested 

 

SCHEDULE:   None 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion by City Council 

 

CITY CONTACT:  Rob Atherton 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  List of cities which have addressed the issue 





 
 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.  10 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT:  Consider ratification of acceptance of Department of Homeland Security-

Division of Emergency Management 2014 SHSP-LETPA Grant in the amount of 

$169,970.00; and approve an Emergency Budget Amendment to incorporate 

funding into current budget. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014   
 

DESCRIPTION: Consider approval to ratify acceptance of Department of Homeland Security-

Division of Emergency Management 2014 SHSP-LETPA Grant in the amount of 

$169,970.00; and approve Emergency Budget Amendment Request.  
 
COST:   None    
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: YES 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.      Requested 

Special Grant Fund Police Department 

   24.560.32 Homeland Security Grant Revenue    $169,970.00 

   24.15.610.35 Computer Equipment Expense     ($169,970.00) 

 

SCHEDULE:  n/a 

  

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Ratify acceptance of 2014 SHSP-LETPA Grant  and approve Emergency Budget 

Amendments to incorporate funding into current budget. 
 

CITY CONTACT: Jim Sevey, Police Chief 

   Stacy Corley, Grant Coordinator  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Contract documents available for review in grant coordinator’s office. 



 
 

 

ITEM NO.  11 
 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Consider adoption of an ordinance regulating a no parking zone on Rusk Street 

from North Street to Pearl Street. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 
 

DESCRIPTION: Staff received a request for a no parking zone for the block of Rusk Street 

located between North Street and Pearl Street.  Several conditions on this 

street make on-street parking hazardous, including the width of the road, and 

the traffic entering and exiting the driveways on the street.  There are 

several head-in parking spaces on the north side of the east end of Rusk 

Street, these spaces will not be affected, as they are offset from the road.   

 

 The traffic committee has reviewed the request and supports the request for a 

no parking zone, as shown on the attached map. 

 

 Council must adopt an ordinance to create a no parking zone so that municipal 

citations may be written to violators. 

 
COST: $0   
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No 

 

FUNDING FROM CURRENT BUDGET 

 
FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Adopted Budget Balance  Requested 
   N/A 

 
SCHEDULE: Upon adoption by the City Council, the ordinance will become effective immediately.  

Public Works will be scheduled to install the signs immediately.  The ordinance will 

not be enforced until the signs are installed. 

 

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Adoption of the ordinance. 
 

CITY CONTACT: Larissa Philpot, City Planner; 559-2571, philpotl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us  

     

 
ATTACHMENTS: Map of the area.   

mailto:philpotl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


22

24
1

3
23-A

4

9

8

2

1

22-D-1

4

10

5

22-C

24-B

2

2

3

21-A&22-B&22-D&21-D

3

1

8

7 NORTH

1 1/2-A-E

7 SOUTH

6

4 WEST

4-A

7

6

5

3-A

4 21-A

1 1/2-A-WE

RUSK ST

PE
AR

L S
T

NO
RT

H 
ST

203209

1720

1822

126

219

1717225

18
11

1703
18

01

222

18
16

218

1812

1613

philpotl
Line

philpotl
Line



 
 

 

ITEM NO.  12 
 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Consider adoption of an ordinance regulating a no parking zone near the 

intersection of Lady Jennifer and Post Oak Road. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 
 

DESCRIPTION: Residents have requested the area near the intersection of Lady Jennifer and 

Post Oak Road be made a no parking zone, due to the low visibility at the 

intersection. 

 

 The traffic committee has reviewed the request and supports the request for a 

no parking zone, as shown on the attached map. 

 

 Council must adopt an ordinance to create a no parking zone so that municipal 

citations may be written to violators. 

 
COST: $0   
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No 

 

FUNDING FROM CURRENT BUDGET 

 
FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Adopted Budget Balance  Requested 
   N/A 

 
SCHEDULE: Upon adoption by the City Council, the ordinance will become effective immediately.  

Public Works will be scheduled to install the signs immediately.  The ordinance will 

not be enforced until the signs are installed. 

 

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Adoption of the ordinance. 
 

CITY CONTACT: Larissa Philpot, City Planner; 559-2571, philpotl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us  

     

 
ATTACHMENTS: Map of the area.   

mailto:philpotl@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


POST OAK RD

LADY JENNIFER DR

NE STALLINGS DR

1 inch = 50 feet

Post Oak and Lady Jennifer

philpotl

philpotl

philpotl
Rejected

philpotl
Rejected

philpotl
Rejected

philpotl
Rejected

philpotl
Rejected



 
 

 

ITEM NO.  13 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 
PROJECT: Consider an ordinance updating the process for appointment of a fire marshal. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 

  

DESCRIPTION:  Current City Code requires that the Fire Marshal be appointed by the City 

Manager with the consent of Council.  Code also makes the Fire Marshal the 

only one who can conduct investigations related to fires.  The Fire Marshal has, 

for many years, been an employee of the Fire Department and operates under 

the direction of the Fire Chief.  The Department has a number of investigators 

who perform fire investigations under the direction of the Fire Chief and Fire 

Marshal.  This proposed change would: 

 make the Fire Marshal position consistent with other fire department 

employees by changing the appointment authority to the Fire Chief 

with the approval of the City Manager 

 clarify that the Fire Marshal’s office is under the supervision of the 

Fire Chief 

 Authorize the Fire Marshal’s designee (other investigators) to 

perform functions related to fire investigations.  

 

 

COST: None 

 

SCHEDULE:  NA 

  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approval of the ordinance as presented. 

 
CITY CONTACT: Keith Kiplinger, Fire Chief 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Ordinance 
 



1 
 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
      § 
COUNTY OF NACOGDOCHES  § 
      § 
CITY OF NACOGDOCHES  § 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1685-11-14 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NACOGDOCHES, TEXAS, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 38. “FIRE PROTECTION AND PREVENTION,” ARTICLE II. “FIRE 
DEPARTMENT,” DIVISION 2 “FIRE MARSHAL” OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NACOGDOCHES, TEXAS, MAKING 
FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY, SAVING AND REPEALER 
CLAUSE, AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds Chapter 38 “Fire Protection and Prevention” of the 

Nacogdoches Code of Ordinances should be amended; and  
 
WHEREAS,  after deliberation on the facts involved in the amendments, the City 

Council of the City of Nacogdoches finds Chapter 38 “Fire Protection and 
Prevention” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Nacogdoches, Texas 
should be amended as set forth hereinafter in order to streamline and 
modernize the appointment of its Fire Marshal. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NACOGDOCHES THAT: 
 
1. Findings.  That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance are 

hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted and incorporated in 
the body of this Ordinance. 

 
Chapter 38 “Fire Protection and Prevention,” Article II. “Fire Department,” Division 2 “Fire 
Marshal” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Nacogdoches, Texas is amended by 
repealing the following: 
 
 Sec. 38-56. – Office created. 
 
 The office of fire marshal is created in the city. 
 
 Sec. 38-57. – Appointment. 

The fire marshal shall be appointed by the city manager, with the consent of the city 
council.  The fire marshal will be under the direction of the city manager, except that in 
matters of fire, explosion and arson investigation, the fire marshal shall have 
independent authority and discretion. 

 
And by replacing same sections with the following: 
 
 Sec-56. – Office created. 



2 
 

 
The office of fire marshal is created in the city, which office shall be under the 
supervision and direction of the fire chief.  Any action or responsibility of the fire marshal 
may be performed by his designee. 

 
Sec. 38-57. – Appointment 

 
The fire marshal shall be appointed by the fire chief, with the approval of the city 
manager. 

 
2. Severability:  If any word, article, phrase, paragraph, sentence, clause, or provision of 

this Ordinance shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the 
invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance 
are declared to be severable. 

 
3. Savings/Repealing Clause.  All provisions of any ordinance in conflict with this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict.  Any remaining portion 
of conflicting ordinances shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

4. Effective Date:  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication if required by governing law. 
 

5. Proper Notice & Open Meeting:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that 
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by 
the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the ____ day of __________________, 2014, by a vote of 
____ (ayes) to ______ (nays) of the City Council of the City of Nacogdoches. 
 
      CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 
 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
       Roger Van Horn, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________   ________________________________ 
Lila Fuller, City Secretary    Rob Atherton, City Attorney 
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Keith Kiplinger, Fire Chief 


